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                                                      NOTICE 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 78th (Seventy Eighth) Annual General Meeting (“Meeting”) of the 
Members of ECE Industries Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Saturday, 28th day of 
September, 2024 at 01:00 P.M. IST through two-way Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statement) of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 
2024 together with the Report of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditor’s thereon. 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (including the Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statement) of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 together with the 
Directors’ Report and the Auditor’s Report thereon as presented to the meeting be and are hereby 
approved and adopted.” 
 

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s Kumar Bhagwad & Co 
(FRN:0014509N), Chartered Accountants Firm, be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of this Meeting to hold office from the conclusion of 
this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to 
be held in the year 2029 at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors.” 
 

3. To consider declaration of dividend on the Equity shares of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the final dividend @ 150% (i.e. Rs. 15/- per share) on 37,81,845 Fully Paid 
Equity Shares to be paid to the shareholders of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2024.” 
 

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sakate Khaitan (DIN: 01248200), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sakate Khaitan (DIN: 01248200), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible offer himself for re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the 
Company liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
 

5. To ratify the remuneration of M/s K.L. Jaisingh & Co., Cost Auditor of the Company 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: - 
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including 
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Company hereby 
ratifies the consolidated remuneration (apart from applicable taxes and reimbursement of actual 
travel and out-of-pocket expenses) of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) payable to M/s 
K.L. Jaisingh & Co., Cost Accountant bearing Membership No.-1222 being the Cost Auditors 
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the cost audit for the financial Year 
ending 31st March, 2025.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, 
deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
  
  
 
 
 

Place: New Delhi         By Order of the Board of Directors 
Date : 05.09.2024                                              
                                                             
                                 Sd/- 
                                                                                                       (Prakash Kumar Mohta) 

                                              Managing Director 
           DIN: 00191299 
Registered Office: 

 ECE House, 
 28-A, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 
 New Delhi- 110001 
 CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279 
 Email: ecehodelhi1@gmail.com 

Website: www.eceindustriesltd.com 
Tel. No.: (+91-11) 233142 37-39 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



 
 
 
NOTES: 
  
 

1) In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be 
followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 
dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and Circular No. 
10/2022 dated December 12, 2022 and Circular No. Dated 09/2023 and all other relevant 
circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM venue 
is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio 
visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through 
VC/OAVM 

 
2) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of 

this Notice and is attached hereto.  
 

3) Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

4) The Register of Beneficial Owners, Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company will remain closed from 20.09.2024 to 27.09.2024 both days inclusive for the purpose 
of updating the members register and share transfer books of the Company. 
 

5) (a) Pursuant to the provisions of section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 dividends for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017 and thereafter, which remain unpaid or unclaimed 
for a period of 7 years will be transferred to the ‘Investor Education and Protection Fund’ 
(“IEPF”) constituted by the Central Government. Members who have not encashed their 
dividend warrant(s) for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017 or any subsequent financial 
year(s) are urged to claim such amount from the Company.  

 
The last dates of claim for the following dividends are as follows: 
 
 

Financial year 
ended 

Date of 
declaration of 
dividend 

Last date for 
claiming unpaid 
Dividend 

Due date for 
transfer to IEPF 
Fund 

31.03.2017 
31.03.2018 
31.03.2019 
31.03.2020 
31.03.2021 
31.03.2022 
31.03.2023 

29.09.2017 
26.09.2018 
30.09.2019 
31.12.2020 
18.11.2021 
30.09.2022 
30.09.2023 

28.09.2024 
25.09.2025 
29.09.2026 
30.12.2027 
17.11.2028 
29.09.2029 
29.09.2030 

27.10.2024 
24.10.2025 
28.10.2026 
29.01.2028 
16.12.2028 
28.10.2029 
28.10.2030 

  
(b) The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial 
years 2015-16, from time to time on due dates, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(the IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed 
amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid 
and unclaimed dividends lying with the Company as on September 30, 2023 (date of last Annual 
General Meeting) on the website of the Company (www.eceindustriesltd.com), and also on the 
website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
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6) Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for 
this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to 
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes. 

 
7) The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time 

of the commencement of the Meeting by clicking on the link sending along with the Notice.  
 
8) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
9) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 107 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to the Circulars issued 

by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 
Further, according to Para B clause XIII of the Circular dated April 08, 2020, where less than 50 
members are present in a meeting, the chairman shall decide to conduct a vote by show of hands, 
unless a demand for poll is made by any member. 

 
 

10) AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA 
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 
MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 12, 
2022 and Circular No. 09/2023 dated 25.09.2023. 
 

11) Mr. Nitin Jaiswal, Practising Company Secretary (PCS), (Membership No. ACS 45981) has 
been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to 
scrutinize the voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
INSTRUCTION FOR JOINING OF AGM 
 

STEP WISE STEP PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VC 
STEP-1 Clink on  link 
STEP-2 Enter your first name in first name field 
STEP-3 Enter your last name in last name field 
STEP-4 Enter email id  
STEP-5  Password auto pre-fill. 
STEP 6 Click on join-now 
STEP-6 Click on run temporary file 
STEP-8 System will download cisco driver run the driver 
STEP-9 Click on join webinar 
 
Place: New Delhi         By Order of the Board of Directors 
Date : 05.09.2024                                               
                                                          
    
                                 Sd/- 
                                                                                                       (Prakash Kumar Mohta) 

                                              Managing Director 
           DIN: 00191299 
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ANNEXURES TO THE NOTICE 
 
 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (2) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 
 
Item No. 5:  
 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the re-appointment of 
the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the financial year 
ending March 31, 2025 at a remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand Only) plus 
applicable taxes and actual out-of-pocket expenses. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as 
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, has to be ratified 
by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an 
Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2025.  
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by 
the members. 
 
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution except and to the extent they are 
members of the Company. 
 

 
                 By Order of the Board of Directors 

 
 
 Sd/- 

            (Prakash Kumar Mohta) 
Place: New Delhi                                  Managing Director 
Date:  05.09.2024                                                    DIN: 00191299 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
Dear Members, 

 
 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 78th (Seventy Eighth) Annual Report on the business and 
operations of the Company with audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMENCE 

   (Amount ₹ in Lakh)   
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Revenue from Operations 71,409.86 58,244.51 
Other Income                   2,870.89  2,268.33 
Total Income 74,280.75 60,512.84 
Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, Tax 
and Other Amortization 

68,990.78 56,613.52 

Profit/Loss from before Depreciation, Tax 
and Exceptional Income 

5,289.97  3,899.32                           

Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 469.52 401.05 
Profit/Loss before exceptional items and Tax 4,820.45 3,498.27 
Exceptional Items - (948.44) 
Profit/Loss after exceptional items and Tax 4,820.45 4,446.71 
Tax Expenses   

i) Current Income Tax 926.34 537.73 
ii) Current tax for earlier years - (0.40) 
iii) Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) 1,058.59 147.12 

Profit/Loss for the year 2,835.52 3,762.25 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 
(Net of Tax) 

135.55 209.33 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,971.07 3,971.59 
Earning per equity share 67.74 70.01 

 
 
IND AS – IFRS CONVERGED STANDARDS 
 
Your Company has already adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“IND-AS”) prescribed by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) with effect from 1st April, 2017. Your Company has 
accordingly prepared IND-AS financials for the year ended 31st March, 2024 along with comparable 
figures as on 31st March, 2023. 
 
 
HIGHLIGHTS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND OPERATIONS 
 
The turnover for the current year is INR 71,409.86 as compared to the Previous Year INR 58,244.51. The 
total Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 is INR 2971.07 as compared 
to Previous year INR 3,971.59.   
 
During the Financial Year 2023-24, your Company has managed the affairs in a fair and transparent 
manner and there was no change in the business of the Company. 
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THE AMOUNTS, IF ANY, WHICH IT PROPOSES TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES 
 
During the year under review, the Company has decided not to transfer any amount to any specific 
Reserve. 
 
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE/JOINT VENTURES COMPANIES 
 
The Company have two wholly owned subsidiary viz. ECE Elevators Limited and ECE Transformers 
Limited incorporated on 23rd February, 2022 and 26th February, 2022 respectively, The details are 
attached as statement in the prescribed Form AOC-1 annexed herewith at Annexure-I. There has been no 
material change in the nature of the business of subsidiaries. 
 

 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
 

1. ECE Elevators Limited  
 
The Company deals in the business of manufacturing of elevators, elevator components, 
escalators, travelators and moving walkways including its maintenance and installations.  
 
In the year under review, the Company has not generated any revenue from its main 
business activity. 
 

2. ECE Transformers Limited 
 
The Company deals in the business of manufacturing of of iron and steel founders and 
manufacturers; mechanical, electrical and general engineers and contractors; 
manufacturers of and dealers in electric, magnetic, galvanic, and other apparatus; iron 
and street converters, tool-makers, brass founders, plate-makers, metal workers, boiler-
makers, manufacturers of steel-casting and manufacturers including maintenance of all 
kinds of electrical and electronic goods such as transformers &amp; its equipments, 
refrigerators, motors, fans, measuring instruments, insulations, switchgears, power plants, 
domestic, and industrial equipments. 
 
In the year under review, the Company has not generated any revenue from its main 
business activity. 

 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The statement as required under Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the subsidiaries of 
the Company viz. ECE Elevators Limited and ECE Transformers Limited are annexed and forms an 
integral part of this Report. Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (“IND-AS”) prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), 
form part of the Annual Report and Accounts. 
 
DIVIDEND 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company has recommended a final dividend of INR 15/- per share (i.e., 
@ 150%) on 37,81,845 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each. The dividend proposal is subject to the approval 
of members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL  
 
a) The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is INR 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

Fifteen Crore only) divided into 1,43,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each and 7,00,000 Preference 
Shares of INR 10/- each. 
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b) The Issued Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is INR 3,78,18,450/- (Rupees Three 

Crore Seventy Eight Lakhs Eighteen Thousand Four Hundred Fifty only) divided into 37,81,845 
Equity Shares of INR 10/- each (excluding forfeited Shares) 
 

c) The Subscribed and Paid up Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is INR 3,78,18,450/- 
(Rupees Three Crore Seventy Eight Lakhs Eighteen Thousand Four Hundred Fifty only) divided into 
37,81,845 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each. 
  

During the financial year under review, there were following changes in the capital structure of the 
Company. 
 
A. Change in authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital:  

 
The Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company has been decreased to 3,78,18,450/- (Rupees 
Three Crore Seventy Eight Lakhs Eighteen Thousand Four Hundred Fifty only) divided into 37,81,845 
Equity Shares of INR 10/- each pursuant to buyback of 12,60,604 (Twelve Lakh Sixty Thousand Six 
Hundred Four) fully paid-up equity shares of face value INR 10/- each at a premium of INR 165/- 
aggregating to a price of INR 175/- per equity share. 

 
B. Equity shares with differential rights: 

 
During the financial year, the Company has not issued any equity share with differential rights.  

 
C. Buy Back of Securities: 

 
During the financial year, the Company bought back 12,60,604 (Twelve Lakh Sixty Thousand Six 
Hundred Four) fully paid-up equity shares of face value INR 10/- each (representing 25% of total number 
of the total outstanding equity shares of the Company through shareholders’ approval) at a price of INR  
175/- (Rupees One Hundred and Seventy Five only) per equity share (“the Buy-back offer price”) 
aggregating to INR 22,06,05,700/- (Rupees Twenty Two Crore Six Lakh Five Thousand Seven Hundred 
only). 

, 
D. Sweat Equity: 

 
During the financial year, the Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares.  

 
E. Bonus Shares: 

 
During the financial year, the Company has not issued any Bonus Shares.  

 
F. Stock Option Plan: 

 
During the financial year, the Company has not given any Stock Options. 
 
CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 
 
During the Financial Year, the company has not changed its Registered office. 
 
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT 
 
During the Financial Year, the company has not entered into Scheme of Arrangement. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 
Particulars in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo, as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) 
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Rules, 2014 are set out in a separate statement attached hereto and forming part of the report as 
Annexure-II. 
 
TRANSFER TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
 
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“The 
Rules”), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government, after completion of seven 
years. Therefore, the Company is required to transfer the unpaid or unclaimed dividends pertaining to 
Financial Year 2016-17 to the IEPF authority 
 
Further, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by 
the Members for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account created  
by the IEPF Authority. However, all the shares on which dividend remained unpaid or unclaimed of the 
F.Y. 2016-17 are not in existence on the date of this report, as the same was redeemed by the Company 
after converting them into the Preference Shares in pursuance of the Para 11(iv) of the Scheme of 
Amalgamation attached as annexure to Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) order dated 
12th January, 2022, in the matter of Scheme of Arrangement entered between Kumar Metals Pvt Ltd 
(“transferor Company”) and ECE Industries Ltd (“transferee Company”) for (a) Amalgamation of 
Transferor and Transferee Company; and (b) Re-organization of Capital of Transferee Company. 
 
Therefore, the Company is not required to comply with requirements pertaining to the transfer of Shares 
to the IEPF authority in accordance with the provisions of Rule 6(5) and 6(8) of the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. 
 
The details of the nodal officer appointed by the Company under the provisions of IEPF Rules are 
available on the website of the Company at www.eceindustriesltd.com. 
 
POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
policy of the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration, including the criteria for 
determining qualification, positive attributes, independence of directors and other matters like Board 
Diversity are given on the website of the Company at www.eceindustriesltd.com.  
Salient features of the policy: 
 
 Policy on Directors’ Appointment 

 
Policy on Directors’ appointment is to follow the criteria as laid down under the Companies Act, 
2013 and good corporate practices. Emphasis is given to persons from diverse fields and professions. 

 
 Policy on Remuneration 
 

Guiding Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of the 
Company is that – 

 
 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Executives, Managers, Staff and Workmen is 

industry driven in which it is operating taking into account the performance leverage and factors 
such as to attract and retain quality talent. 
 

 For Directors, it is based on the shareholders resolutions, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules framed therein, circulars and guidelines issued by Central Government and other 
authorities from time to time. 
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ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS 
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has initiated and put in place evaluation of its own performance, 
its committees and individual directors. The result of the evaluation is satisfactory and adequate and 
meets the requirement of the Company. 
 
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
All Independent Directors have given declarations to the effect that they meet the criteria of independence 
as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, Independent 
Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act, Rules made there under. 
 
STATEMENT ON OPINION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, 
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 
 
During the year under review, No Independent Director was appointed on the Board of the Company.  
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of 
your company state that: 
 
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
 
(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
company for that period; 

 
(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
 
(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
 
(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review. 
 
DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- APPOINTMENT, RE-APPOINTMENT & 
RESIGNATION 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the 
Company, Mr. Sakate Khaitan (DIN: 01248200), Non-Executive Director of the Company retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
Further, the Board of Directors namely Mr. Basant Kumar Daga & Mr. Anant Suresh Jatia resigned from 
their Directorship. 
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
There were 6 (Six) meetings of the Board of Directors were held i.e., on 22.04.2023, 09.06.2023, 
30.08.2023, 06.12.2023. 02.02.2024 and 16.03.2024 and 1 (One) meeting of the Independent Directors 
held on 14.03.2024 during the year ended on 31st March, 2024. 
 
DETAILS OF COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Company has duly constituted the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
CSR Committee of Directors in terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. During the financial 
year 2023-24, the desired number of meeting of the Committee(s) were held and attended by each 
member of the Committee as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 
 
The recommendation by the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee and CSR 
Committee when made to Board has been accepted by it. 
 
The Composition of Audit Committee is set out below: 
 

Name of the Member Category 
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jajoo  
(Chairman of the Committee) 

Independent Director 

Mr. Yogesh D. Korani- Member Independent Director 
Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta Managing Director 

 
The Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is set out below: 
 

Name of the Member Category 
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jajoo  
(Chairman of the Committee) 

Independent Director 

Mr. Yogesh D. Korani- Member Independent Director 
Mr. Sakate Khaitan Director 

 
The Composition of CSR Committee is set out below: 
 

Name of the Member Category 
Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta Managing Director 
Mr. Sakate Khaitan Director 
Mr. Yogesh Dahyalal Korani Independent Director 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
Your Company has designated Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta (DIN: 00191299), as the Managing Director 
and Mr. Rajat Sharma, CFO as the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTY 
 
All the related party transactions for the year under review are entered on arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.  There is no transaction 
with Related Party which requires disclosure under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  The details of the transactions with related party are 
provided in schedules/ notes to the financial statements under Note No. 41 (iii) forming part of the Annual 
Report. 
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LOANS, INVESTMENT AND GUARANTEES BY THE COMPANY 
 
There is no loan given, guarantee given or security provided by the Company to any entity during the year 
ended 31st March, 2024. Further, the investments made by the Company are within the limits and in 
conformity with the provisions as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of 
the investments are provided in schedules/ notes to the financial statements under Note No. 2 forming part 
of the Annual Report. 
 
DEPOSITS 
 
Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as well as employees during the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Your Directors periodically discuss and monitors the risk management plans as well as evaluated various 
risks and that there is no element of risk identified that may threaten the existence of the Company. There 
is an adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. The risk 
management policy is available on the website of the Company i.e., www.eceindustriesltd.com. 
 
VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 
Your Company is committed to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. 
Accordingly, Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy was formulated which provides a robust 
framework for dealing with genuine concerns & grievances. The Policy provides for adequate safeguard 
against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism and also provides direct access to the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. Specifically, employees can raise concerns regarding any 
discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any 
instances of fraud by or against your Company. Further, the company also place its Vigil Mechanism 
Policy on its website www.eceindustriesltd.com. 
 
DISCLOSURE ABOUT RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY MD/WTD FROM A COMPANY 
AND ALSO RECEIVING COMMISSION/RENUMERATION FROM ITS SUBSIDIARY AS PER 
SECTION 197(14) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:  Nil 
 
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE POLICY 
 
As per the requirement of “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’)” and Rules made there-under, your Company has constituted Centralized 
Internal Complaint Committees (ICC). The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at 
workplace. While maintaining the highest governance norms, the Company has also appointed external 
independent persons, who have requisite experience in handling such matters. During the year, the 
Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
 
Your Company has the policy of giving back to the society and in line with the requirement of Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, has carried a host of CSR activities this year. The CSR Policy of the 
Company is available on its website www.eceindustriesltd.com. For implementation of CSR activities, a 
robust system of reporting and monitoring has been put in place to ensure effective implementation of 
planned CSR initiatives. During the year, the Company has obligation to spent INR 52.08 Lakh on CSR 
activities. The annual report of CSR annexed herewith at Annexure-III to this report. 
 
Subsequently, following the issuance of MCA General Circular No. 14/2021 on August 25, 2021, the 
disclosure of expenditures falling short of the CSR obligation is mandatory. 
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During the financial year, the company failed to spend the total amount required under its CSR obligation. 
This was due to the company's inability to identify suitable opportunities for deploying the unutilized 
CSR funds. However, the CSR obligation for the financial year 2023-2024, amounting to INR 52.08 lakh, 
has been spent within 6 months from the closure of the financial year.  
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
During the financial year under review, none of the Company's employees was in receipt of remuneration 
as prescribed under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5(2) Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended and hence no 
particulars are required to be disclosed in this report. 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS AND REPORT  
 
The Company auditor’s M/s VSD & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No.008723N), were 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office upto the conclusion of 78th Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of the company at a remuneration to be fixed by the Board.  No ratification of 
their appointment is required as per notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs. 
 
Audit Reports on Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements are self- explanatory and do not call 
for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors Report to the 
shareholders for the year under review does not contain any adverse qualification. 
 
However, M/s. Kumar Bhagwad & Co (FRN:0014509N), Chartered Accountants, being eligible to offer 
themselves for appointment at this Annual General Meeting for a period of 5 (Five) years as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company pursuant to provisions of Sections 139 of Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, be and is hereby appointed and shall hold office from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) up to the conclusion of  AGM to be held in the year 
2029.    
 
COST AUDITORS AND REPORT 
 
The Board of Directors has appointed M/s K.L. Jaisingh & Co., Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors 
for conducting the audit of cost account records made and maintained by the Company for the financial 
year 2024-25 pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, since the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for FY 2024-25 is required to be ratified 
by the members; the Board recommends the same for approval by members at the ensuing AGM. 
 
Cost Audit Report of the Company are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments from the 
management of the Company. 
 
SECRETARIAL AND AUDIT REPOT 
 
The Board of Directors has appointed M/s NJ & Associates, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company 
for conducting the audit of Secretarial records made and maintained by the Company for the financial 
year 2024-25 pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The secretarial Audit Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024 in prescribed form duly audited by the 
Practicing Company Secretary, M/s. NJ & Associates is annexed herewith as Annexure-IV and forming 
part of the Directors report. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 to the shareholders for the year 
under review does not contain any adverse qualification. No frauds have been reported by the Secretarial 
Auditors under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring disclosure in the Board’s Report. 
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INTERNAL AUDIT AND REPORT 
 
The Company continued to engage M/s K.N. Gutgutia & Co., Chartered Accountants as its Internal 
auditors at its units. Their scope of work and plan for audit is discussed and reviewed by the Audit 
Committee. The report submitted by them is regularly reviewed and suitable corrective action taken on an 
ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations. 
 
REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 
 
There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to 
report to the Board under Section143(12) of Act and Rules framed thereunder. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India. The Company has devised proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 
 
The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 
 
INSURANCE 
 
Adequate insurance cover has been taken for properties of the company including buildings, plant and 
machineries and stocks against fire, earthquake and other risks as considered necessary. 
 
ANNUAL RETURN 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014, the extract of annual return has been placed on the 
website of the Company i.e., www.eceindustriesltd.com. 
 
THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016, DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR 
STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 
No application is made nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
during the year. 
 
THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS 
THEREOF: Not Applicable 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED AFTER THE DATE OF BALANCE SHEET 
 
The major events occurred after the date of balance sheet of the Company for the year ended on March 
31, 2024, are as follows: 
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The Board of Directors of the Company in its Board Meeting dated 19th day of June, 2024 proposed to 
shift its Registered Office from the “UNION TERRITORY OF DELHI” to the “STATE OF UTTAR 
PRADESH”. 
 
The application for such change is pending before the Regional Director, Northern Region for approval. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
Your Directors place on record their thanks for the dedicated services rendered by all the employees of 
the company in its factories and offices and also acknowledge the co-operation, assistance and support 
extended by the Company’s bankers and stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
        
Place :  New Delhi         Sd/-            Sd/- 
Date :  05.09.2024                           (Prakash Kumar Mohta)        (Sakate Khaitan) 

    Managing Director                    Director 
DIN: 00191299  DIN: 01248200 
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ANNEXURE – I 
Form AOC- 1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2O14) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or Joint ventures 

Part A Subsidiaries 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in INR Hundreds.) 

1. S. No. 1 
2. Name of the subsidiary ECE Elevators Limited 
3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 23/02/2022 
4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company's reporting period. 

01/04/2023 - 31/03/2024 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. 

NA 

6. Share capital INR 1,000.00 
7. Reserves and surplus (509.08) _ 
8. Total assets INR 1100.00 
9. Total Liabilities INR 1100.00 
10. Investments Nil 
11. Turnover Nil 
12. Profit before taxation (409.08) 
13. Provision for taxation Nil 
14. Profit after taxation (409.08) 
15. Proposed Dividend Nil 
16. Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 

 

1. S. No. 2 
2. Name of the subsidiary ECE Transformers Limited 
3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 26/02/2022 
4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company's reporting period. 

01/04/2023 - 31/03/2024 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. 

NA 

6. Share capital INR 1,000.00 
7. Reserves and surplus (509.08) _ 
8. Total assets INR 1200.00 
9. Total Liabilities INR 1200.00 
10. Investments Nil 
11. Turnover Nil 
12. Profit/ (Loss) before taxation (409.08) 
13. Provision for taxation Nil 
14. Profit/ (Loss) after taxation (409.08) 
15. Proposed Dividend Nil 
16. Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 

 
Part B Associates and Joint Ventures : not applicable 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil 
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil 
    

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 Sd/- Sd/- 

                                                                                (Prakash Kumar Mohta)           (Sakate Khaitan) 
                                                                                                         Managing Director                 Director 
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(Annexure - II) 
 
 
 
Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 
Earnings and Outgo pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
A. Conservation of Energy 
 
In Transformers manufacturing, we implemented Imported material Automatic Doors to avoid 
entry of moist air in plant and to ensure door  close environment. 

220KV Bay Extension completed with Epoxy painted floor. Extension of shed will facilitate 
to improve dust free manufacturing activity, productivity, quality and reduce space constraint 
for power transformers. 

Further Implementation of Gas heating  replaced electrical heating (Energy saving)  in VPD 
(Vapor Phase Drying) in 220KV bay. 

The company is constantly working to produce energy-efficient elevators and conserve energy 
during the production process. Our permanent  magnet synchronous motors have been 
deployed not only for our main machines but also for our door systems, which allows oil-free 
machines deployment across 96% of our product line. 

Small but impactful initiatives have been implemented in our facility to reduce energy 
consumption by 15%. We have set up Rainwater harvesting pits and Sewage Treatment Plant 
(STP) to recycle and reuse water, further promoting sustainability efforts. 

 
B. Technology Absorption 
 
Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form-B are furnished below. 
 
Form-B 
 
(Form for disclosure of Particulars with respect of Technology Absorption) 
 
1. Research and Development (R&D) 
 
New  Transformer Factory shed for 200 MVA 220 KV is under way to increase production 
capacity. Additional area will be added for production of transformers up to 200 MVA, 220 
KV.  It will cater to customer up to 220 KV, particularly in range of 132 KV and 220 KV.  

Elevator Factory infrastructure has been significantly improved, including bringing in Amada 
machines to enhance production capabilities and ensure compliance with modern industrial 
standards. 

The Mera Sujhav Meri Company (MSMC) portal was introduced to foster continuous 
development and improvement across all aspects of our business. This initiative allows 
employees to submit their suggestions (Sujhav) online, ensuring their ideas are considered, 
reviewed, and implemented. Notably, this scheme has now been extended to include all 
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stakeholders including our customers and vendors, broadening the scope for innovative 
solutions and driving impactful changes across the organization. 

ECE SMART App has been upgraded with new Sales and Installation modules, offering clients 
a more detailed and transparent view of their projects. These enhancements streamline 
processes and improve clarity, building on the App’s foundation of real-time control and 
operational oversight.  

 
2. Technology Absorption, Adaptation & Renovation 
 
In Transformer Manufacturing, the company has last year installed Vapour Phase Drying 
System (VPD) and now implemented process of Drying transformer with use of Nitrogen gas 
to get PI above 2.  The use of dry air to avoid moisture ingress during Boxup to trabsfirner after 
VPD. 
 
In Elevators, a new Human Resource Management System has been launched, streamlining 
HR processes, improving employee engagement, and enhancing workforce management. 

In Elevators, the company has established ECE University, an internal learning platform 
designed to foster employee development, enhance skillsets, and promote a culture of 
continuous learning. 

In Elevators, a scaffold-less process has been piloted, representing a new safety initiative aimed 
at reducing workplace accidents and improving efficiency. 
 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 
 
During the year under review, foreign exchange earnings was NIL and foreign exchange outgo 
was Rs. 1644.23 Lakh. 
 
 
 
      For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors  
 
 
 Sd/- Sd/- 
      (Prakash Kumar Mohta) (Sakate Khaitan) 
Place : New Delhi       Managing Director      Director 
Date  : 05.09.2024         DIN : 00191299   DIN : 01248200 
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ANNEXURE – III 
 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

(Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013) 

1. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 
 

In accordance with the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rule, 2014, ECE Industries Limited has 
formulated its CSR Policy duly approved by the Board of Directors. CSR is essentially a way of 
conducting business responsibly and ECE shall endeavor to conduct its business operations and 
activities in a socially responsible and sustainable manner at all times. 

 
In alignment with our vision and guiding principles, through our CSR initiatives we aim to address 
India’s most pressing challenges related to education, health, equality, and access. We are committed to 
enable people and technology to drive innovation, disseminate knowledge, and create shared value to 
improve lives. Our CSR programme areas shall be aligned with the national development priorities 
and the needs of the communities and will be in sync with Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee: 
 

S. No. Name of the Member Designation 
1. Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta Chairman 
2. Mr. Yogesh Dahyalal Korani Member 
3. Mr. Sakate Khaitan Member 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company: 

As per Section 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Composition of CSR Committee and CSR 
Policy can be viewed at the website of the Company i.e., www.eceindustriesltd.com. 

4. Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-Rule 
3 of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable 
(attach the report): Nil 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the 
financial year, if any: Nil 

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): INR 2640.00 Lakh 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 52.80 Lakh 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years: Nil 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b+7c): INR 52.80 Lakh 
 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 
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Total amount 
spent for the 

financial 
year (in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs) 
Total Amount to Unspent 

CSR Account as per 
section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII 
as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

 
 

Nil 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of transfer 

52.80 26.04.2024 NA NA NA 
     

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial 

year: NIL 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the 
financial year:  

 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

S.
No
. 

Name of the 
project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII in the 

Act 

Local 
Area 

(Yes/N
o) 

Location of the 
project Amount 

spent 
for the 
project 

Mode 
of 

Imple
menta
tion 

Direct 
(Yes/
No) 

Mode of 
Implementation - 

through 
implementing 

Agency 

State District Name 

CSR 
Registr
ation 
No. 

1 

Contribution 
of Rs.50 
thousand 
towards 
Blood 
donation & 
Health check- 
up, medical 
emergency 
support, etc 

i)
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 
ca

re
 

No 

M
H

A
 

N
ag

pu
r 

5
0

,0
0

0
 

No 

VIP 
Anchal 
Mahesh

wari 
Sabha 

CSR00
078144 

2 
Contribution 
of Rs.1 lakhs 
towards 

i)
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 
ca

re
 

No 

B
E

N
 

K
ar

na
ta

ka
 

1
,0

0
,0

0
0

 

No 

Nationa
l 

Institute 
of 

Medica
l Health 

And 
Neuro 

Science
s. 

CSR00
006218 
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3 

Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
towards 
providing 
medical 
service to a 
child 

i)
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 

No D
L

 

N
ew

 D
el

hi
 

50
,0

00
 

No 

Child 
Help 

Founda
tion 

CSR00
001113 

4 

Contribution 
of Rs.12 lakhs 
was made 
towards 
Ambulance 
service. i)

 P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

No A
P 

Y
er

na
gu

de
m

 

1
2,

0
0,

0
0

0
 

No 

Paragat
hi 

Associa
tion for 
Rural 

Develo
pment 

CSR00
011837 

5 

Contribution 
of Rs 50 
thousand  
towards 
donation of a 
ambulance for 

i)
 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

No 

M
H

A
 

  

M
um

ba
i 

5
0,

0
00

 

No 
Cancer 
Control 
Mission 

CSR00
016895 

6 

Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Maitreyi 
Charitable 
trust 

i)
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 

No W
B

 

K
ol

ka
ta

 

5
0,

0
0
0

 

No 

Maitrey
i 

Charita
ble trust 

CSR00
004236 

7 

Contribution 
of Rs. 5 lakhs 
toward 
scholarship of 
students 
facing 
financial 
hardship. 

ii
) 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

E
du

ca
ti

on
 

No H
P 

M
an

di
 

5
,0

0
,0

0
0

 

No 

Indian 
Institute 

of 
Techno

logy 
mandi 

CSR00
057737 

8 

Contribution 
of Rs.50 
thousand 
empowerment 

ii
) 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

E
du

ca
ti

on
 

No D
L

 

N
ew

 d
el

hi
 

5
0,

0
0
0

 

No 

A B 
Mahesh

wari 
Educati

onal 
Trust 

CSR00
019288 

9 

Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
towards 
welfare 
activity for 
destitute and 
deprived 
children and 
women 

ii
i)

 P
ro

vi
di

ng
 

O
rp

ha
na

ge
 &

 
R

eh
ab

il
it

at
io

n 

No 

M
H

A
 

M
um

ba
i 

5
0,

0
0
0

 

No 

Vatsaly
a Trust 
Mumba

i 

CSR00
003134 

21



10 

Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousands 
towards Rural 
Development 
in Raigad and 
Nashik 
districts of 
Maharashtra 

x)
 R

ur
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 

No 

M
H

A
 

M
um

ba
i 

5
0,

0
0
0

 

No 
Swades 
Founda

tion 

CSR00
000440 

11 

Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
toward 
donation to 
Missionaries 
of Charity i)

 P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

No W
B

 

K
ol

ka
ta

 

5
0,

0
0
0

 

No 
Mission
ares of 
Charity 

CSR00
016527 

12 

Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Make-A-Wish 
India. i)

 P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

No 

M
H

A
 

M
um

ba
i 

1
,0

0
,0

0
0

 

No 
Make-

A-Wish 
India 

CSR00
004619 

13 

Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
Skill 
Development 
& Vocational 
Training for 
the tribal 
Women & 
youth in rural 
Maharshtra. 

ii
) 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

E
du

ca
ti

on
 

No 

M
H

A
 

M
um

ba
i 

1
,0

0
,0

00
 

No 

Neevjiv
an 

Founda
tion 

CSR00
059372 

14 

Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Sneha 
Foundation 
who works for 
underprivilege
d children. 

ii
) 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

E
du

ca
ti

on
 

No 

G
U

J 

B
ha

vn
ag

ar
 

1
,0

0
,0

0
0
 

No 
Sneha 

Founda
tion 

CSR00
005363 

15 

Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
Thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Culcutta 

iv
) 

E
ns

ur
in

g 
A

ni
m

al
 

W
el

fa
re

 

No W
B

 

K
ol

ka
ta

 

5
0,

0
0
0
 

No 

Culcutt
a 

pinjrap
ole 

Society 

CSR00
007320 
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16 Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Helpage 
India. i)

 P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

No D
L

 

N
ew

 D
el

hi
 

1
,0

0
,0

0
0

 

No Helpag
e India 

CSR00
000901 

17 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
Thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Marwari 
Relief 
Society. 

i)
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 

No W
B

 

K
ol

ka
ta

 

5
0,

0
0
0

 

No 
Marwar
i Relief 
Society 

CSR00
006109 

18 Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
TATA 
Medical 
Centre Trust. 

i)
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 

No W
B

 

K
ol

ka
ta

 

1
,0

0
,0

0
0

 

No 

TATA 
Medical 
Centre 
Trust 

CSR00
002920 

19 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
Thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Maa Madhuri 
Brij Varis 
Sewa Sadan 
Apna Ghar 
Sanstha. 

ii
i)

 s
et

ti
ng

 u
p 

ol
d 

ag
e 

ho
m

es
 

No  

 

B
aj

he
ra

 

5
0,

0
0
0

 
No 

Maa 
Madhur

i Brij 
Varis 
Sewa 
Sadan 
Apna 
Ghar 

Sanstha 

CSR00
003469 

20 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
Thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Goonj 

xi
) 

di
sa

st
er

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

No 

D
E

L
 

N
ew

 D
el

hi
 

5
0,

0
0
0

 

No Goonj 
CSR00
000291 

21 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
Thousand  
Handicapped 
and Backward 

i)
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 

No W
B

 

K
ol

ka
ta

 

5
0
,0

0
0

 

No 

Institute 
for the 
Handic
apped 
and 

Backwa
rd 

CSR00
001076

5 

22 Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
SOS 
Children’s 
Village Of 
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towards 
providing 
donation to 
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Education 
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of Rs. 50 
thousand 
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providing 
donation to 
Shri krishna 
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26 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Shri Murli 
Manohar 
gaushala 
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27 Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Indian 
Institute of 
Cerebral 
Palsy 
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of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Smile 
Foundation ii
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of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
All India 
Helping Care 
Foundation 

ii
) 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

E
du

ca
ti

on
 

No W
B

 

H
ow

ra
h 

1
,0

0
,0

0
0

 

No 

All 
India 

Helping 
Care 

Founda
tion 

CSR00
017112 

24



30 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
A.J. 
Charitable 
trust 
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31 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Chhattisgarh 
Help Welfare 
Society 
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Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
CRY Child 
Rights And 
You 
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33 Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
10 Thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Friends of 
Tribals 
Society 
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of Rs. 50 
thousand 
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providing 
donation to 
Akshaya Patra 
Foundation 
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37 Contribution 
of Rs. 50 
thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Bharatendu  
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38 Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
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39 Contribution 
of Rs. 6 Lakhs 
50 Thousand 
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providing 
donation to 
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40 Contribution of 
Rs. 1 Lakh 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Army Welfare 
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41 Contribution 
of Rs. 1 Lakh 
20 thousand 
towards 
providing 
donation to 
Shri 
Vaijayanti 
Sewa 
Sansthan trust 
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year: INR 52.80 

(g) Excess amount for set off: NIL 

 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
year(s): Nil 

 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital assets, furnish the details relating to the asset to the asset 
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details) 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). No Capital Assets – Nil 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital - asset – Nil 
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(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc. – Nil 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
location of the capital asset). – Nil 

 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5). 

 
 
Since the Company has not identify suitable opportunities for deploying the unutilized CSR amount., therefore the 
total amount has not been spent during the F.Y 2023-24. However, amount of INR 52.80 Lakh has been transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account and spend during the current year till date. 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                                Sd/- Sd/- 
 (Prakash Kumar Mohta) 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00191299 

(Sakate Khaitan) 
               Director 

DIN: 01248200 
   

 
Place : New Delhi 
Date : 05.09.2024 
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ANNEXURE – IV 
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 

[Pursuant to secƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon Personnel) 

Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The Members, 
ECE Industries Limited, 
Regd. Office: ECE House, 28 A, 
Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi-110001 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate pracƟces by ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED having CIN: 
U31500DL1945PLC008279 (hereinaŌer called “the company”). Secretarial Audit for the 
Company was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verificaƟon of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the informaƟon provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on 31st March 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporƟng made 
hereinaŌer: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024, according to 
the provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; (Not applicable to the company) 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(to the extent applicable to the company) 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the 
company) 

(v) The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- (Not applicable to the company) 
(a) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares 

and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011; (Not applicable to the company) 
(b) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) 

RegulaƟons, 1992; (Not applicable to the company) 
(c) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2009; (Not applicable to the company) 
(d) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock OpƟon Scheme 

and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to 
the company) 
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(e) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes) 
RegulaƟons, 2008; (Not applicable to the company) 

(f) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) RegulaƟons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; (Not applicable to the company) 

(g) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) 
RegulaƟons, 2009; (Not applicable to the company); and 

(h) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 
1998; (Not applicable to the company) 

(vi) any other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company. 
                     I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India. 
      (ii) The LisƟng Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) read with 
the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015; (Not applicable to the company) 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, RegulaƟons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. menƟoned above. 

I further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper 
balance of ExecuƟve Directors, Non-ExecuƟve Directors and Independent Directors. The 
changes in the composiƟon of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟngs, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further informaƟon and clarificaƟons on the agenda items before the meeƟng 
and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenƟng members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operaƟons of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period the company has: 

i. Bought Back 12,60,604 (Twelve Lakh Sixty Thousand Six Hundred Four) fully paid-
up equity shares of face value INR 10/- each at a price of INR 175/. 

 
 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                                   For NJ & Associates, 
Date:  05.09.2024                                                                                                     Company Secretaries     
UDIN: A045981F001185702  

Sd/- 
NiƟn Jaiswal 

Proprietor 
M. No.: A45981 

C.O.P. No.: 16762 
                                                                                        

*This report is to be read with Annexure-A which forms an integral part of the report. 
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Annexure-A 

To, 
The Members, 
ECE Industries Limited, 
Regd. Office: ECE House, 28 A 
Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi-110001 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this leƩer. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

2. I have followed the audit pracƟces and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 
The verificaƟon was done on the sample test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and pracƟces, I followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books 
of accounts of the company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representaƟon about 
compliance of laws, rules and regulaƟons and happenings of events etc. 

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulaƟons, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaƟon was 
limited to the verificaƟon of procedures on sample test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of efficacy or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company. 
 

Place: New Delhi                                                                                                   For NJ & Associates, 
Date:  05.09.2024                                                                                              Company Secretaries     
UDIN: A045981F001185702 
 

Sd/- 
NiƟn Jaiswal 

Proprietor 
M. No.: A45981 

C.O.P. No.: 16762 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To 
The Members 
ECE Industries Limited 
 

Report on the audit of the standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ECE Industries Limited, (‘the 
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these  standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 
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specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the  standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Company are 
responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
Company. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 
of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identified during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure-
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books.  

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income and 
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e)  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
company and the operation effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
“Annexure- B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial statements as 
detailed in Note 24 and 40 to the Financial Statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:  

 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding 
Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India or  

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 
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b)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India shall:  

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding 
Parties or  

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 

 
c)   Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under subclause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any material misstatement. 

 
v) The final dividend proposed for the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the 
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable. 
 
As stated in Note 44 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the 
Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Such dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 
of the Act, as applicable. 
 
vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from 1 April 2023. Based on our examination which included test checks the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software.  
 

3. In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2024 has been 
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act; 
 
 

                      for VSD & Associates 
                                                                  Chartered Accountants 

                        F.R.No.008726N 
 

        Sd/- 
                                                                                     (Vinod Sahni) 

                               Partner 
            M.No.086666 

 
 

Place:  New Delhi 
Dated: 05.09.2024   
UDIN:  24086666BKCAMR6105 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the 
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024, we report that: 

 

i)  
 
a) 
 
  

In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible 
assets: 

I. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

II. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles 
assets.   

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant 
and equipment are held in the name of the Company. 

 
c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment 
(including Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the year.  

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 
and rules made thereunder.  

e) The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by 
management were appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between 
the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each 
class of inventory. 

 
ii) 

 
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 
of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such 
banks or financial institutions are more or less in agreement with the books of accounts of the 
Company. 

 
b) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood 

guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.  

   
iii) a) During the year the investments made by the Company is not prejudicial to the Company’s 

interest. The Company has not provided guarantees or security and has not granted loans and 
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties and hence not commented upon.  

b) 
The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(iii)(c) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon.  

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
records of the Company, in respect of investments made by the Company, in our opinion the 
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been complied 
with. 

   
iv)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any 

deposit from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the 
year within the meaning of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. We are informed by 
the management that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board, National Company 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal. 

   
v) 

 
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is maintaining its cost 
records as per the form prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the activities of the company. We have broadly reviewed the 
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cost records made and maintained by the company and are of the opinion that prima facie the 
prescribed records have been made and maintained. We, however, have not made a detailed 
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

   
vi) 

 

The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, goods and services tax and any other statutory dues with the 
appropriate authorities. There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of 
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

   
vii) a)  According to the records of the company, there are no dues outstanding of Income tax, Sales 

tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, VAT and Cess on account of any dispute 
other than the following: -  

 
b) 

 

Name of The 
Statute 

Nature of Dues Year Amount 

(₹ In Lakh)* 

Forum where 
dispute is 
Pending 

Delhi Works Contract 
Act, 1999 

Demand Towards 
Work Contract 
Tax 

2002-03 12.00 Deputy 
Commissioner 
(Appeals), Delhi 

Andhra Pradesh 
General Sales Tax 
Act, 1957 (Central) 

Demand towards 
Works Contract 
Tax 

2001-02, 

2003-04 

10.94 Commercial Tax 
Officer, Andhra 
Pradesh 

Gujarat State Sales 
Tax Act, 1969  

Demand towards 
work contract tax 

1993-94 2.78 Deputy 
Commissioner 
(Appeals), Gujarat 

U P Municipal Laws 
(Cess Act) 

Demand towards 
Water Cess 

1992-93 0.60 Tehsildar, 
Ghaziabad (U.P.) 

The Uttar Pradesh 
Value Added Tax Act 
2008 

Demand towards 
VAT 

2011-12 7.66 VAT Tribunal 
Commercial Tax, 
Ghaziabad 

The Uttar Pradesh 
Value Added Tax Act 
2008 

Demand towards 
VAT 

2016-17  10.02 VAT Tribunal 
Commercial Tax, 
Ghaziabad 

      *Net of payment 

viii) 
 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any 
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments 
under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the Year. 

   
ix) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of borrowing to financial institutions or banks. However, the Company has not taken 
any loans or borrowings from government or debenture holders during the year.   

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.   

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company 
has obtained term loans and such term loans were applied for the purpose for which they were 
obtained.  

36



  

 
d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised for short-term basis have been 
used for long-term purpose by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable  

 
e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 

financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from 
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or 
joint ventures.. 

 
f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 

report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x) a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

    
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

   

xi) a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in 
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the course of the audit 

 
b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government. 

 
c) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any 

complaint on the whistle blower during the year. 

   
 
xii) 

 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.  

   
xiii) 

 
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.    

xiv) a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

   
xv) b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company for the period under audit.   

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and 
therefore the clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

   

xvi) 
 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company 
is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xvii)(a) to (d) of the Order are not applicable 

xvii) 
 

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year.    

xviii) 
 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable 
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xix) 
 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx) 
 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to 
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

 
 
 

                      for VSD & Associates 
                                                                  Chartered Accountants 

                         F.R.No.008726N 
 
 

        Sd/-  
                                                                                       (Vinod Sahni) 

                                 Partner 
                                                 M.No.086666 

  

 

 

 

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub –section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ECE Industries Limited as of 
March 31st, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

Place:  New Delhi 
Dated: 05.09.2024   
UDIN:  24086666BKCAMR6105 
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. 

                      for VSD & Associates 
                                                                  Chartered Accountants 

                         F.R.No.008726N 
 
 

  Sd/-  
                                                                                       (Vinod Sahni) 

                                 Partner 
s               M.No.086666 

Place:  New Delhi 
Dated: 05.09.2024   
UDIN:  24086666BKCAMR6105 
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Amount (₹ in Lakh)
 As At  As At 

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
I. ASSETS

(1) Non-Current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1A 4,209.31                                3,538.27                                      

 (b) Other Intangible assets 1B 0.02                                         0.06                                               
(c) Goodwill under Business Combination 70.61                                       70.61                                            
(d) Capital work-in-progress 1C 123.89                                    213.48                                         
(e) Financial Assets
     (i) Investments 2 18,475.61                              19,510.45                                   
    (ii) Other Financial Assets 3 439.29                                    451.76                                         
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 -                                           503.39                                         
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 5 89.14                                       50.64                                            

(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 14,215.01                              13,566.93                                   
(b) Financial Assets
     (i)   Investments 2 144.82                                    -                                                 
     (ii) Trade Receivables 7 29,580.15                              22,443.03                                   
    (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8A 1,535.82                                1,449.12                                      
     (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 8B 469.20                                    1,315.10                                      
     (v) Loans 9 43.64                                       40.16                                            
    (vi) Other Financial Assets 10 541.11                                    111.06                                         
(c) Current Tax Assets 11 1,036.29                                1,419.14                                      
(d) Other Current Assets 12 940.26                                    2,466.34                                      

Total  Assets 71,914.17                            67,149.54                                  

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 378.35                                    504.41                                         
(b) Other Equity 14 32,293.97                              32,019.92                                   

(2) Liabilities
(A) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 15 348.56                                    182.20                                         
     (ia) Lease Liabilities 16 1.02                                         94.00                                            
    (ii) Others 17 39.58                                       38.39                                            
(b) Provisions 18 369.13                                    249.26                                         
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 556.77                                    -                                                 
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 19 3,384.07                                3,458.32                                      

(B) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 20 7,673.91                                9,041.45                                      
     (ia) Lease Liabilities 16 90.44                                       98.91                                            
    (ii) Trade Payables 21 18,470.25                              14,981.01                                   
    (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 2,547.80                                1,685.18                                      
(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 5,116.67                                4,262.89                                      
(c) Provisions 24 643.65                                    533.60                                         

Total Liabilities 71,914.17                            67,149.54                                  

Summary of significant Accounting Policies 38

Other Notes to Accounts

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet.
As per our Report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

Sd/-
(Vinod Sahni)
Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

Particulars Note No.

34 to 37 & 

39 to 44

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 
DIN: 00191299 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 
DIN: 01248200 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal Korani)

Director 
DIN: 00041923 

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)

President & CFO
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Amount (₹ in Lakh)
 1st April, 2023 to  1st April, 2022 to 
 31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Income
Revenue from operations 25 71,409.86                          58,244.50                            
Other Income 26 2,870.88                             2,268.35                               

Total Income 74,280.74                          60,512.85                            
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 54,219.05                          46,222.28                            
Purchases of Traded Goods 11.24                                   6.16                                        
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and 
Stock-in-Trade

27 (1,026.72)                           (1,779.97)                             

Employee Benefit Expense 28 4,655.73                             3,885.85                               
Finance Costs 29 911.07                                 970.83                                   
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 30 469.52                                 401.04                                   
Other Expenses 31 10,220.40                          7,308.38                               

Total Expenses 69,460.29                          57,014.58                            

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 4,820.45                             3,498.27                               
Exceptional Items 32 -                                        (948.44)                                 

Profit / (Loss) after exceptional items and tax 4,820.45                             4,446.71                               

Tax expense/(income)
 (1) Current tax 926.34                                 537.73                                   
 (2) Current tax for earlier years -                                        (0.40)                                       
 (3) MAT credit entitlement -                                        -                                           
 (4) Deferred tax Charge/(Credit) 4 1,058.59                             147.12                                   

Profit/(Loss) for the Year 2,835.52                             3,762.25                               

Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit & loss 33 135.55                                 209.34                                   

(ii) Income -tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
statement of profit & loss

-                                        (0.01)                                        

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax) 135.55                                 209.33                                   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,971.07                             3,971.59                               

Earning per equity share:
  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each
       Basic & Diluted 40.3 67.74                                   70.01                                      
 

Summary of significant Accounting Policies 38

Other Notes on Accounts
34 to 37 & 

39 to 44

The Notes referred to above from an integral part of Balance Sheet.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

Sd/-
(Vinod Sahni)
   Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

Particulars

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Note No.

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal Korani)

Director 

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)

President & CFO
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Particulars
 1st April, 2023 to 
31st March, 2024 

 1st April, 2022 to 
31st March, 2023 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax 4,820.45                                          4,446.71                                        

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 469.52                                              401.05                                            
Fair Value change in Financial Instruments (64.80)                                              (39.33)                                             
Acturial Loss transferred to OCI -                                                     -                                                   
(Profit)/ Loss on disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) -                                                     -                                                   
Net Loss on Derecognition of Investment -                                                     376.25                                            
Net Gain on Derecognition of Investment (1,690.51)                                        
Dividend income on non-current Investments (other than Trade) (66.96)                                              (57.45)                                             
Sundry Balance Written off (92.73)                                              (40.13)                                             
Expenses relating to Buy-back of shares -                                                   
Reversal of Provisions -                                                     (47.40)                                             
Debt, Advance & other debit Balance Written off 66.39                                                  36.67                                                
Finance Costs 911.07                                              970.83                                            
Interest Income (799.21)                                            (1,266.67)                                       
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (4.99)                                                 3.59                                                 
KMP insurance expense 10.00                                                10.00                                               
Provision For Doubtful Debts 153.57                                              3.18                                                 
Provision For CSR Expense 52.80                                                27.99                                               
Exceptional Items -                                                     (1,147.44)                                       
Modification gain on financial asset -                                                     (164.34)                                          

Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 3,764.60                                          3,412.70                                        

Movement in Working Capital :
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (7,290.69)                                        (3,948.15)                                       
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (648.07)                                            (3,321.48)                                       
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Receivables 1,504.60                                          (1,460.82)                                       
Increase /( Decrease) in Trade Payables, Other Liabilities & Provisions 5,449.50                                          4,625.13                                        
Cash generated from/ (Used in ) operations 2,779.94                                          (692.62)                                          
Direct Tax Paid (Net) (5.76)                                                 413.81                                            

Net cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities 2,774.18                                          (278.81)                                          

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (1,093.71)                                        (802.90)                                          
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment including advance received (72.14)                                              2,277.00                                        
Movement in Capital Advances -                                                     -                                                   
Proceeds from sale of Investments 4,058.74                                          7,885.05                                        
Purchases of Investments (2,948.98)                                        (3,111.69)                                       
Fixed Deposits 846.21                                              (595.66)                                          
Interest Received 778.21                                              2,246.27                                        
Dividend Received 66.96                                                57.45                                               

Net cash from/ (used in) Investing Activities 1,635.29                                          7,955.52                                        

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Borrowings (1,201.18)                                        (2,028.78)                                       
Payment of Lease Liabilities (109.05)                                            (105.89)                                          

Buyback of Equity Shares (2,206.06)                                        (2,436.21)                                       

Redemption of Preference Shares -                                                     (1,322.63)                                       
Finance Costs (995.27)                                            (894.61)                                          
Dividend Paid 188.78                                              (207.02)                                          

Net cash from/ (used in) Financing Activities (4,322.78)                                        (6,995.14)                                       

Net Increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents(A+B+C) 86.70                                                681.57                                            
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,449.12                                          767.55                                            
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,535.82                                          1,449.12                                        

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Cash on Hand 7.57                                                   10.99                                               
Cheques on Hand -                                                     -                                                   
Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts 835.69                                              1,412.12                                        
In Cash Credit Accounts 67.89                                                -                                                   
Balance with Bank in Margin Money -                                                     -                                                   
Bank Deposits 624.67                                              26.01                                               

Earmarked Balances
In Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 9.47                                                   9.16                                                 

1,545.29                                          1,458.27                                        
9.47                                                   9.16                                                 

1,535.82                                          1,449.12                                        

As per our Report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates                                           For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

Sd/-
(Vinod Sahni)
   Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

Less :- Unclaimed Dividend lying with Bank

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 
DIN: 00191299 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 
DIN: 01248200 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal Korani)

Director 
DIN: 00041923 

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)

President & CFO
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Particulars
Face Value 

(₹)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)

(A) Non-Current Investments

(I ) Investment Measured at Amortised Cost
In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid
ECE Elevators Limited 10 10,000                     1.00                                                      10,000                    1.00                                                      
ECE Transformers Limited 10 10,000                     1.00                                                      10,000                    1.00                                                      

In Equity Shares of Other Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid
Kesoram Textile Mills Ltd. (Refer Note 2.1) 2 2,25,800                 4.52                                                      2,25,800                4.52                                                      
Kesoram Insurance Broking Service Ltd. 10 50,000                     5.00                                                      50,000                    5.00                                                      

In Prefernce Shares of other Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid
IL&FS Transportation Network Ltd. 10                     25,00,000                -                                                        25,00,000               -                                                        

Total Investment at Amortised Cost (I) 11.52                                                  11.52                                                  

In Debentures of Other Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid
CASA Grande Milestone Private Limited 
(Refer Note 2.6) 100000 210                          218.00                                                 -                          -                                                        

Total Investment at Fair Value Through PL (II) 218.00                                                -                                                       

(II) Investment Measured at Fair Value Through OCI
In Equity Shares of Other Companies
Quoted Fully Paid
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 10                     4,71,931                 827.53                                                 4,71,931                725.12                                                 
Universal Enterprices Limited 10                     10,000                     -                                                        10,000                    -                                                        
Reliance Capital Limited 10                     1                               0.00                                                      1                              0.00                                                      

Unquoted Fully Paid
Banashankari Co-operative Housing Society 
limited 10                     5 0.00                                                      5 0.00                                                      
Gallant sales pvt. Ltd 10                     100 0.01                                                      100 0.04                                                      
Gangagham Merchandise Pvt. Ltd 10                     100 0.01                                                      100 0.06                                                      
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 1                       50,000                     2,050.00                                              -                          -                                                        

Total Investment at Fair Value Through OCI (III) 2,877.55                                            725.23                                                

(III) Investment at Fair Value Through PL
In Mutual Funds
Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund (Refer Note 2.2) 21,42,273.77         748.17                                                 21,90,425.15        1,188.50                                              
Bank of Baroda Mutual Fund 23,09,445.86         330.93                                                 8,09,530.86           101.02                                                 

In Venture Capital Fund/Alternative Fund  (Refer 2.6)
ICICI Venture Capital Fund Real Estate 
Scheme I (Refer Note 2.4)

10                     -                           -                                                        27,96,738              124.35                                                 

IIFL Special Oppor. Fund Class A5  (Refer 2.3)
10                     

38,29,755.78         2,020.69                                              3,84,99,078           2,622.98                                              

ICICI Prudential Real Estate AIF-I  (Refer 2.5)
100                  

3,05,885                 179.13                                                 4,29,238                315.19                                                 

ICICI Prudential Real Estate AIF-II   (Refer 
2.5) 100

36,797.01               25.33                                                   77,641                    51.52                                                   

IIFL Income Oppor. Fund Series-II  (Refer 
2.3) 10

94,70,477               1,291.35                                              94,70,477              1,191.25                                              

IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series-II 
(Refer Note 2.3) 10                     

-                           -                                                        2,15,31,489           521.00                                                 

IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series-III 
(Refer Note 2.3) 10                     

61,30,000               141.07                                                 61,30,000              140.67                                                 

IIFL Special Opportunities Fund CAT-II AIF 
(Pre-Ipo) (Refer Note 2.4) 10                     92,98,232               147.79                                                 92,98,232              622.76                                                 

India Business Excellence Fund-III 1,000               22,726                     245.45                                                 24,467                    250.00                                                 
Indiareit Apartment Fund (Piramal) (Refer 
2.3) 1,00,000         

-                           -                                                        465                         535.88                                                 

India Realty Excelence Fund-III  (Refer 2.5)
100                  

3,98,801                 522.83                                                 5,02,140                687.93                                                 

India Reality Excellence Fund-IV 100 24,13,921               2,679.45                                              29,72,811              3,085.78                                              
Emerging India Credit Opportunities Fund I

1,00,000.00   
1,620                       1,657.97                                              1,557                      1,557.00                                              

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet

As At 
31st March 2024

As At 
31st March 2023

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

47



ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet
IIFL Special Opportunities Fund Series-9 
(Refer 2.3) 10                     

1,49,29,254            1,964.97                                              1,49,29,254           1,552.18                                              

Northern Arc India Impact Fund (Refer 2.3)
1,00,000         

1,981                       2,086.25                                              1,981                      2,079.65                                              

India Realty Excellence Fund-V 100                  -                           -                                                        14,90,075              1,101.37                                              
Kotak Pre-Ipo Opportunities Fund 1,000               1,26,979                 1,239.30                                              97,424                    956.00                                                 
IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series-4 10                     16,17,751               87.86                                                   16,17,751              88.69                                                   

Total Investment at Fair Value Through PL (IV) 15,368.54                                           18,773.70                                           

Total Non-Current Investments (A=I+II+III+IV) 18,475.61                                          19,510.45                                          

Particulars
Face Value 

(₹)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)

(B) Current Investments

Investment at Fair Value Through P&L
In Equity Shares of Other Companies
Quoted Fully Paid
HDFC Bank Ltd. 10,000                     144.82                                                 -                          -                                                        

Total Current Investment(B) 144.82                                                -                                                        

Total Investment(A+B) 18,620.43                                          19,510.45                                          

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Security Deposits 69.11                                                   70.70                                                   
Deposits with Bank held as margin money 7.13                                                      7.13                                                      
Earnest Money Deposits 363.05                                                 373.93                                                 

439.29                                                451.76                                                

4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision and Liabilities 408.04                                                 299.01                                                 
Mat Credit Entitlement -                                                        695.70                                                 

Gross Deferred Tax Asset (A) 408.04                                                994.70                                                

Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities
Timing Difference on Depreciable Assets 271.24                                                 286.76                                                 
Fair Value of Investments (Net) 693.57                                                 204.55                                                 

Gross Deferred Tax Liability (B) 964.81                                                491.32                                                
Net Deferred Tax Assets (A-B) (556.77)                                              503.39                                                

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Received on account of transfer of textile division by Kesoram Industries Ltd. to Kesoram Textile Mills Ltd. during the year 1999-2000.

Lien of Rs. 735.33 Lakh  has been created in accordance with the  terms of Bill Discounting Facility sanctioned by Aditya Birla Finance Limited  respectively Refer to Note 
No. 20.2.

Lien is created on the said Investment towards allocation of demand loans upto maximum limit of Rs. 8000 Lakh by 360 One Prime Ltd. Refer to Note No. 20.3.

Lien is created on the said Investment towards allocation of demand loans upto maximum limit of Rs. 2100 Lakh by Aditya Birla Finance Limited. Refer to Note No. 20.2.

Lien is created on the said Investment towards towards credit arrangement facility upto maximum limit of Rs. 1000 Lakh by ICICI Bank Limited towards use of Letter of 
credit for operation of the company.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

During the FY 2023-24, the company has purchased 210 units of Unlisted secured redeemable non convertible debentures from two parties. However, the same were 
reflected subsequently after the year end in Demat statement of the company.

All the above funds have been valued on the basis of latest data available with the management.
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5 OTHER NON-CURRENT  ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Capital Advances 38.50                                                   -                                                        
Sub-Judicial Matter 50.64                                                   50.64                                                   

89.14                                                  50.64                                                  

6 INVENTORIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

(Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Raw Materials 4,398.09                                              4,815.71                                              
Work in Progress 9,734.82                                              8,716.87                                              
Finished Goods 39.55                                                   11.18                                                   
Stores and Spares 24.60                                                   11.17                                                   
Scrap at realizable value 17.95                                                   12.00                                                   

14,215.01                                          13,566.93                                          

7 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Unsecured 7.1
Considered Good 29,580.15                                           22,443.03                                           
Considered Doubtful 439.84                                                 286.27                                                 
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (439.84)                                               (286.27)                                               

29,580.15                                          22,443.03                                          
7.1 Balance with customers are subject to confirmations and reconciliations.

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered Good *

23,794.52       2,567.27                 1,346.42                                            416.51                    1,886.56                                              30,011.28             

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 
have significant increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -   -                           

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit 
Impaired  -    -    -    -    -   -                           

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered 
Good  -    -    -    -    -   -                           

v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk  -   1.68                          3.85                                                      -   3.18                                                      8.71                         

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit 
Impaired  -    -    -    -    -   -                           

Sub-Total 23,794.52     2,568.95                1,350.27                                            416.51                  1,889.74                                            30,019.99             

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables -                  1.68                         3.85                                                     -                          434.31                                                439.84                   

Total 23,794.52     2,567.27                1,346.42                                            416.51                  1,455.43                                            29,580.15             

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2024
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Financial Year - 2022-23

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered Good *

17,669.82       1,631.44                 1,508.24                                              473.60                    1,159.93                                              22,443.03             

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which 
have significant increase in credit risk -                   -                           -                                                       -                          -                                                        -                           

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit 
Impaired -                   -                           -                                                       -                          -                                                        -                           

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered 
Good -                   -                           -                                                       -                          283.09                                                 283.09                   

v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk -                   -                           -                                                       -                          3.18                                                      3.18                         

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit 
Impaired -                   -                           -                                                       -                          -                                                        -                           

Sub-Total 17,669.82     1,631.44                1,508.24                                            473.60                  1,446.20                                            22,729.30             

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables -                  -                           -                                                       -                          286.27                                                286.27                   

Total 17,669.82     1,631.44                1,508.24                                            473.60                  1,159.93                                            22,443.03             

8A CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Balances with Banks:
-in Current Accounts 835.69                                                 1,412.12                                              
-in Cash Credit Accounts 67.89                                                   -                                                        
Deposits with Bank 624.67                                                 26.01                                                   
Cash on Hand 7.57                                                      10.99                                                   

1,535.82                                            1,449.12                                            

8B BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Earmarked Balances with Bank
-in Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 9.47                                                      9.16                                                      
Deposit with Banks held as margin money 459.73                                                 1,305.94                                              

469.20                                                1,315.10                                            

9 CURRENT LOANS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Unsecured considered good
Loan to Staff 43.64                                                   40.16                                                   

43.64                                                  40.16                                                  

10 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Security Deposits 1.51                                                      1.51                                                      
Unbilled Revenue 67.53                                                   66.76                                                   
Accrued Interest Receivable 60.26                                                   39.26                                                   
Other Receivables 411.81                                                 3.53                                                      

541.11                                                111.06                                                

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2023
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11 CURRENT TAX ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Income Tax Assets (Net) 1,036.29                                              1,419.14                                              

1,036.29                                            1,419.14                                              

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Advance to Suppliers 622.43                                                 418.28                                                 
Balance with Revenue Authorities 246.46                                                 566.60                                                 
Prepaid Expenses 50.04                                                   29.99                                                   
Advance for purchase of shares (Refer No 12.1) -                                                        1,440.00                                              
Others 21.33                                                   11.47                                                   

940.26                                                2,466.34                                              

12.1

13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Nos.
 Amount

 (₹ in Lakh) 
Nos.

 Amount
 (₹ in Lakh) 

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares
Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each 1,43,00,000            1,430.00                                              1,43,00,000           1,430.00                                               
Preference shares

7,00,000                 70.00                                                   7,00,000                70.00                                                     

1,50,00,000          1,500.00                                            1,50,00,000         1,500.00                                            

(b) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares
Equity Shares of   ₹ 10/-  each fully paid 50,87,679               508.77                                                 67,67,826              676.78                                                 
Less: Buy Back of Shares (12,60,604)             (126.06)                                               (16,80,147)            (168.01)                                               
Preference shares
9% non-cumulative Redeemable preference shares -                           -                                                       -                          -                                                        

38,27,075             382.71                                                50,87,679            508.77                                                

(c) Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Equity shares
Equity Shares of  ₹ 10/-  each fully paid 37,81,845               378.19                                                 50,42,449              504.24                                                 
Add: Forfeited Shares (Amount originally
paid)       -                           0.17                                                      -                          0.17                                                       
Preference shares
 9% Non-cumulative redeemable preference share -                           -                                                                                      -   -                                                        

Total Paid-up share capital 37,81,845             378.36                                                50,42,449            504.41                                                 

13.1

Nos

 Amount
 (₹ in Lakh) Nos

 Amount
 (₹ in Lakh) 

Equity shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the 
period 10/- 50,42,449               504.25                                                 67,22,596              672.26                                                 
Add: Shares issued during the year
Less: Buy Back of Shares (12,60,604)             (126.06)                                               (16,80,147)            (168.01)                                               
Less: Equity shares converted into 
Preference shares 10/- -                           -                                                        -                          -                                                        

Shares outstanding at the end of the 
period (A) 37,81,845             378.19                                                50,42,449            504.25                                                

Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of  ₹ 10/- each

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As At March 31 2024 As At March 31 2023

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

During the FY 2022-23, Advance of Rs14.40 crore paid against purchase of  50000 shares of NSE Ltd.

Face ValueParticulars

As At March 31 2023As At March 31 2024
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Preference shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the 
period 

-                           -                                                       -                            -                                                        

Add: Equity shares converted into 
Preference shares 10/-

-                           -                                                        5,66,049                  56.60                                                   

Less: Redemption of Pref Shares -                           -                                                        (5,66,049)               (56.60)                                                  
Shares outstanding at the end of the 
period

(B) -                           -                                                       -                          -                                                       

(A+B) 37,81,845             378.19                                                50,42,449              504.25                                                 

13.2 Rights preferences and restrictions attached with Shares

13.3 Details of the Shareholders holding more than 5% shares along with number of shares held

No. of Shares held % of Equity Shares
No. of Shares 

held
% of Equity Shares

Equity shares 

Diplomat Limited                                       -                                                               -                  12,57,000                                                      24.93 
Jayantika  Jatia                                                4,26,198                                                      11.27                   3,48,451                                                        6.91 
Maitreyi  Kandoi                                                4,26,197                                                      11.27                   3,48,447                                                        6.91 

                17,05,108                                                      45.09                20,48,547                                                      40.63 
Prakash Kumar Mohta (HUF)                    3,48,451                                                        9.21                               -                                                               -   
Pratibha Khaitan                    4,26,200                                                      11.27                               -                                                               -   
Maulashree Gani                    4,26,297                                                      11.27                               -                                                               -   

13.4  Promoter's Shareholding 

S. No.                       Promoter Name 
 Number of 

Shares 
Held 

 Percentage of 
Total Shares 

 Percentage Change during the 
Year 

 Number of 
Shares 

Held 
 Percentage of Total Shares 

 Percentage 
Change during 

the Year 

Equity shares

1 Prakash Kumar Mohta         17,05,108                         45.09 34%                17,00,096                                                      33.72 -                           
2 Jayashree Finvest Private Limited                        -                                   -   -100%                   2,22,124                                                        4.41 -                           
3 Prakash Kumar Mohta( HUF)           3,48,451                            9.21 33%                   3,48,451                                                        6.91 -                           
4 Jayantika  Jatia           4,26,198                         11.27 63%                   3,48,448                                                        6.91 -                           
5 Maitreyi  Kandoi           4,26,197                         11.27 63%                   3,48,447                                                        6.91 -                           
6 Pratibha Khaitan           4,26,200 11.27                        63%                   3,48,450 6.91                                                       -                           
7 Maulashree Gani           4,26,297 11.27                        63%                   3,48,547 6.91                                                       -                           
8 Essel Mining & Industries Ltd                        -                                   -   -100%                      85,730                                                        1.70 -                           
9 Jayashree Mohta               11,688                            0.31 35%                      11,688                                                        0.23 -                           
10 Kumar Mangalam Birla                        -                                   -   -100%                        6,750                                                        0.13 -                           
11 Sakate Khaitan                     200                            0.01 0%                            200                                                             -   -                           
12 Diplomat limited                        -                                   -   100%                12,57,000                                                      24.93 -                           

13.5 Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up bought back

In line with the Capital Allocation Policy the Board at its meeting held on April 22 2023 approved the buyback of 12,60,610 equity shares amounting to ₹2206.07 Lakhs. The Company has
created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of ₹126.06 Lakhs equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from General Reserve. The Company’s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value. In order to maintain or achieve an
optimal capital structure.

As on March 31 2024 As on 'March 31 2023

As At March 31 2023

  

As At March 31 2024

In FY 2022-23, the company bought back 16,80,147 equity shares amounting to ₹2436.21Lakhs. The Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of ₹168.01 Lakhs equal to the nominal 
value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from General Reserve.

Preference share :In Previous Year, the company had redeemed one class of 9% Non-Cumulative compulsory redeemable preference shares having at par value of ₹10 per share with a
Premium of ₹ 223.66 per share. As per the Order of Hon'ble NCLT these preference share can be redeemed within a maximum period of 20 years from the date of issue with a put and call
option available to the Preference Shareholders and the Company for its early redemption.

Equity Shares : The company has redeemed Equity Share having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation the equity shareholders are eligible 
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

Prakash Kumar Mohta
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14 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Securities Premium
As per last Balance Sheet -                                                       2,150.19                                              
Add: Transfer from General Reserve -                                                        1,384.04                                              
Less: Utilised for Buy Back of Equity Shares -                                                        2,268.20                                              
Less: Utilised for Redemption of Preference Shares -                                                        1,266.03                                              

(A) -                                                       -                                                       

Capital Redemption Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 507.88                                                 283.26                                                 
Add: Transfer from General Reserve 126.06                                                 224.62                                                 

(B) 633.94                                                507.88                                                

General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 4,009.35                                              6,143.89                                              
Less: Transfer to Securities Premium -                                                        1,384.04                                              
Less: Utilised for Buy Back of Equity Shares 2,080.00                                              
Less: Transfer to Share Buy Back 126.06                                                 224.62                                                 
less : Tax on share buy back 427.91                                                 525.88                                                 

(C) 1,375.38                                            4,009.35                                            

Retained Earnings

Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year 23,068.12                                           19,520.41                                           
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period 2,835.52                                              3,762.25                                              

25,903.64                                          23,282.66                                          
Less :
Actuarial Loss on defined benefits Obligations(Net of Tax) (33.12)                                                7.75                                                      
Dividend Paid 189.09                                                 206.79                                                 
Balance Carried to Next Year (D) 25,747.67                                          23,068.12                                          

Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)
Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year 4,434.56                                              4,217.46                                              
Add: Movement in OCI(Net) during the year 102.42                                                 217.10                                                 

(E) 4,536.98                                            4,434.56                                            

Total Other Equity (A+B+C+D+E) 32,293.97                                          32,019.92                                          

(A)

(B)

(C)
(D)
(E)

15 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Term Loans (Secured)
- From Banks
Bank of Baroda 15.1 -                                                        2.31                                                       
ICICI Bank 15.2 1.05                                                      1.67                                                       
The Federal Bank 15.3 54.56                                                   77.74                                                     

- From Other Parties
Siemens Financial Services Private Limited 15.4 29.26                                                   51.21                                                     
Toyota Finance Services India Private Limited 15.5 37.83                                                   49.27                                                     
Tata Capital Limited 15.6 225.86                                                 

348.56                                                182.20                                                

The amount received in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium and shall be utilized in accordance with Section 52 of Companies Act 2013.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

This amount represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on revaluation of Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income net of amounts
reclassified if any to Retained  Earnings when those instruments are disposed of.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

The amount equal to the nominal value of the shares purchased by the Company has been classified as Share Buy Back Reserve and shall be utilized in accordance with Section 69 of the 
Companies Act 2013.

This amount represents the accumulated earnings of the Company.

This amount represents retained earnings of a company which are kept aside out of company’s profits to meet future (known or unknown) obligations.
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15.1

15.2

15.3

15.3.1 The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 59 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

16 LEASE LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Non-Current Liabilities
Lease Liabilities 1.02                                                      94.00                                                     

Current Liabilities
Lease Liabilities 90.44                                                   98.91                                                     

91.46                                                  192.91                                                

Movement of Lease Liabilities during the year

Opening Lease Liabilities 192.91                                                 292.15                                                  
New Leases recognised -                                                        -                                                         
Interest expense on Lease Liabilities 3.11                                                      4.94                                                       
Exchange fluctuation on Lease Liabilities 4.49                                                      1.71                                                      
Payment of Lease Liabilities (109.05)                                               (105.89)                                               
Closing Lease Liabilities 91.46                                                  192.91                                                

17 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Security Deposits 39.58                                                   38.39                                                   

39.58                                                  38.39                                                  

18 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Provision for Employee Benefits 40.4 154.17                                                 127.86                                                 
Provision for Warranty 24.1 214.96                                                 121.40                                                 

369.13                                                249.26                                                

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 3.00 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to its lenders and has not declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks financial institution or any other lender.

Borrowings from financial institution have been used for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

The current maturities of the long term borrowings are disclosed under the head 'Short term borrowings'.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 4.50 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 40 lakh  repayable in 56 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 87.79 lakh  repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Plant and Machinery.

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 61.60 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle. 

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 271.87 lakh  repayable in 49 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Plant and Machinery.
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19 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Sub Judicial Matter 40.5 662.08                                                 662.08                                                 
Advance against sale of Property Plant & Equipment 2,721.99                                              2,796.24                                              

3,384.07                                            3,458.32                                            

20 CURRENT BORROWINGS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Secured Loans
Repayable on Demand
Cash Credit Facility from Banks 20.1 1,784.14                                              1,415.08                                              
Bill Discounting Facility from NBFC 20.2 2,082.21                                              2,084.91                                              
Loan against Securities from NBFC 20.3 3,510.99                                              4,923.53                                              

Unsecured Loans
Repayable on Demand
Loan From Related Parties 231.00                                                 556.00                                                 

Current Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings 65.57                                                   61.93                                                   

7,673.91                                            9,041.45                                            

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

21 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Payables for goods and services 21.1 & 21.2 18,470.25                                           14,981.01                                           

18,470.25                                          14,981.01                                          
Trade Payable ageing schedule

Less than 1 
year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

years
Total

MSME 956.27                -    -    -   956.27                                                
Others 17,309.03         97.66                         17.68                                                     89.62                        17,513.98                                          
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Total 18,265.30     97.66                      17.68                                                  89.62                     18,470.25                                          

Less than 1 
year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

years
Total

MSME 93.75                 0.09                           93.84                                                  
Others 14,729.25         104.58                       21.05                                                     32.28                        14,887.16                                          
Disputed dues - MSME -                   -                           -                                                       -                          -                                                        
Disputed dues - Others -                   -                           -                                                       -                          -                                                        
Total 14,823.00     104.68                   21.05                                                  32.28                     14,981.01                                          

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
as on 31st March 2023

-  Pari-Passu charge on other Fixed Assets of all units except Ghaziabad unit 

The Company has entered into Bill Discounting Arrangement  with Aditya Birla Finance Ltd.  amounting to ₹2100 lakh against lien on units of Investments. (refer Note No. 2.2 and 2.4) 

360 One Prime Ltd. have sanctioned ₹8000 lakh Loan against securities & lien on units of various Investments. (refer Note No. 2.3)

Particulars

Particulars

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

As on Balance Sheet date the Borrowings have been used for the specific purpose taken for.

No charge or satisfaction of charge is pending for registration with Registrar of companies.

First Pari-Passu charge by way of hypothecation on all Current Assets of the company both present & future.  Second Pari-Passu charge on Fixed Assets of the company as under :-

-  Land & Building of Sonipat unit admeasuring 16.86 acres.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
as on 31st March 2024

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to its lenders and has not declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks financial institution or any other lender.

-  Plant & Machinery of all units except Ghaziabad unit.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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21.1

21.2

22 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref.
As At

31st March 2024
As At

31st March 2023

Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 74.14                                                   161.45                                                 
Unpaid Dividend 9.47                                                      9.16                                                      
Unclaimed Preference shares 138.32                                                 138.32                                                 
Contractual Deductions by Customers & Price Variation 906.95                                                 177.79                                                 
Dues to Others 1,085.06                                              918.71                                                 
Employee's Emoluments and Other Payables 333.86                                                 279.75                                                 

2,547.80                                            1,685.18                                            

23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Statutory Dues 372.16                                                  174.23                                                  
Advance against sale of Fixed Assets -                                                         -                                                         
Advance from and Credit Balance of Customers & Others 4,125.63                                               3,571.54                                               
Unearned Revenue 566.08                                                  493.12                                                  
CSR Expense Payable 52.80                                                     24.00                                                     

5,116.67                                            4,262.89                                            

24 CURRENT PROVISIONS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Provision for Employee Benefits 40.4 260.67                                                 250.64                                                  
Provision for Warrantees 24.1 350.98                                                 282.96                                                  
Provision for expenses 32.00                                                   

643.65                                                533.60                                                

24.1 Disclosures as per Ind AS-37

Particulars  Ref. No. 
 Balance as at 

31.03.2023 
 Additions during the year 

 Used & reversed 
during the year 

 Balance as at 31.03.2024 

Provision for Warranty 24.1.1 404.36                   165.08                                                3.51                        565.94                                                
(351.49)                   (135.79)                                               (82.93)                    (404.36)                                              

Current Year 404.36                   165.08                                                3.51                        565.94                                                 
Previous Year (351.49)                   (135.79)                                               (82.93)                    (404.36)                                               

Additional Notes :-

24.1.1

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Vendor's balances are subject to confirmations and reconciliations.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

The principal amount of INR 956.27 lakh (Previous Year INR 93.84 lakh) remaining unpaid on 31.03.2024 to suppliers as defined in the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act
2006 to the extent such suppliers have been identified on the basis of information provided during the year to the Company. The Company generally makes payments to all its suppliers within
the agreed credit period and thus the management is confident that the liability of interest under this Act if any would not be material.

Warranty provision covers the estimated expenses to be incurred during warranty period of the products of the company determined on the basis of past experience. The company reviews the 
warranty provisions at periodical intervals and the same is adjusted to the estimated expenses to be incurred during the balance warranty period of the product.  Expenses incurred during the 
year against warranty are being directly charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.
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25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Note Particulars Ref. 1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to

No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Sale of Product and Services

Sale of Finished Goods 52,484.22                                           43,684.89                    
Contract Jobs 16,091.77                                           12,221.12                    
Maintenance and Services Revenue 2,583.85                                             2,159.71                       

(A) 71,159.84                                         58,065.72                   
Other Operating Income
Sales of Production Scrap (B) 250.02                                                 178.78                          

Total Revenue     (A)+(B) 71,409.86                                         58,244.50                   

25.1 Disclosure on Revenue pursuant to Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers

A.  Disaggregation of Revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Revenue from contracts with customers

i) Revenue from Operations*

     a) Electrical Equipment for Power Transmission and Distribution 51,769.71                                         42,984.50                   
     b) Elevator 18,897.21                                         14,547.72                   
     c) Chemical 742.94                                               712.29                         

Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 71,409.86                                         58,244.50                   

B. Contract Balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:

Contract Liabilities

Advance from Customers 4,125.63                                             3,571.54                       
Total (A) 4,125.63                                            3,571.54                      

Receivables

Trade Receivables 29,580.15                                           22,443.03                    
Total (B) 29,580.15                                         22,443.03                   

Net Receivables (B-A) 25,454.52                                         18,871.49                   

C. Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

Opening Balance 3,571.54                                             2,162.30                       
Addition during the year 4,125.63                                             3,571.54                       
Revenue recognized during the year 3,571.54                                             2,162.30                       

Closing Balance 4,125.63                                            3,571.54                      

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Notes forming part of the Statement of Profit & Loss

* The Company has disaggregated the revenue from contracts with customers on the basis of nature of products into Electrical Equipment for Power Transmission and
Distribution, Elevator and Chemical (refer note 39). The Company believes that the disaggregation of revenue on the basis of nature of products has no impact on the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows.

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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26 OTHER INCOME

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest Income 799.21                                                 1,266.67                       
Rent & Licence Fees 195.98                                                 200.08                          
Dividend Income from Non-Current Investments (Other than Trade) 66.96                                                   57.45                             
Sundry Balances Written Back 92.73                                                   40.13                             
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 5.54                                                      -                                 
Reversal of Provisions -                                                        47.40                             
Net gain on Investments carried at fair value through Profit & Loss 1,690.51                                             -                                 
Modification Gain on Financial Asset 26.1 -                                                        164.34                          
Interest Income on Financial Assets carried at fair value through Amortised cost -                                                        100.81                          
Bad-debts Recovered 3.90                                                      384.60                          
Misc. Income 16.05                                                   6.86                               

2,870.88                                            2,268.35                      
26.1 Modification gain on financial asset has been recognized on account of revision in contractual terms w.r.t. repayment of money to the Company.

27 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Closing Stock
Finished Goods 14.35                                                   5.67                               
Work-in-Progress 9,734.92                                             8,716.88                       

9,749.27                                            8,722.55                      

Less:
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 5.67                                                      6.33                               
Work-in-Progress 8,716.88                                             6,936.24                       

8,722.55                                          6,942.57                    

Decrease / (Increase) in Stock (1,026.72)                                         (1,779.97)                  

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Salaries and Wages 4,182.80                                             3,459.67                       
Contribution to Provident and Others Funds 301.56                                                 282.94                          
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 171.37                                                 143.23                          

4,655.73                                            3,885.85                      

29 FINANCE COSTS

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest Expense 891.77                                                 964.59                          
Interest on Lease Liabilities 3.11                                                      4.94                               
Other Borrowing Cost 16.19                                                   1.31                               

911.07                                                970.83                         

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars Ref.

Ref.

Ref.

Ref.
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30 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 469.52                                                 401.05                          

469.52                                                401.04                         

31 OTHER EXPENSES

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Processing & Material Handling Expenses 2,969.80                                             2,311.02                       
Freight outwards, Transport and Octroi Expenses 644.25                                                 402.20                          
Power & Fuel Expenses 443.79                                                 423.56                          
Rent 179.35                                                 163.91                          
Rates and Taxes 142.90                                               53.44                             
Auditor's Remuneration 31.1 12.30                                                   9.02                               
Repair and Maintenance:

- Buildings 77.76                                                   81.05                             
- Plant and Machinery 146.01                                                 98.02                             
- Others  99.75                                                   105.24                          

Commission on Sales 760.28                                                 531.77                          
Net Loss on FVTPL -                                                        376.25                          
Insurance 117.02                                                 89.43                             
Legal & Professional Charges 703.63                                                 538.69                          
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 31.2 569.19                                                 469.83                          
Bank Charges 457.64                                                 534.76                          
After Sales Services 299.59                                                 164.65                          
Impulse & Short Circuit Charges 2.47                                                      33.32                             
Debt, Advance & other debit balance written off 66.39                                                   36.67                             
Provision For Doubtful Debts 153.57                                                 3.18                               
Contractual Deductions / Recoveries by Customers 1,476.50                                             97.32                             
Directors Sitting Fees 0.99                                                      1.70                               
CSR Expense 31.3 52.80                                                   27.99                             
Miscellaneous Expenses 844.42                                                 755.35                          

10,220.40                                         7,308.38                      

31.1 Payment to Statutory Auditors   :
  i) Audit Fee 4.75                                                      4.75                               
  ii) Reimbursement of Expenses 0.45                                                      0.45                               
  iii) Certification 0.95                                                      0.95                               
  iv) Taxation and other matters 6.15                                                      2.87                               

31.2 Includes Directors' Travelling ₹ 49.88 Lakh (Previous Year ₹  50.64 Lakh).

31.3

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Ref.

Ref.

Provision for expenditure under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities is ₹ 52.80 Lakh (Previous year ₹ 27.28 Lakh).

The amount to be transferred to CSR unpent Account for utilisation as per the requirement under The Companies Act, 2013.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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32.3

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2023

(a) Unspent amount from previous years                                                    24.00                                     -   
(b) Amount required to be spent by the company during the financial year                                                    52.80                              27.28 
(c) Excess/(Short) provision recognised in previous financial year                                                           -                                  0.70 
(d) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year,                                                  (24.00)                              (3.98)
(e) Shortfall/ Provision at the end of the year                                                    52.80                              24.00 
(f) Total of previous years shortfall/ Provision,                                                           -                                       -   
(g) Reason for shortfall,

Not applicable       Not applicable

32 1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

32.1 Reversal of Provision for Legal Liability 40.6 & 40.7 -                                                      (1,147.44)                    
32.2 Loss on account of cyber fraud 40.7 -                                                      199.00                          

-                                                     (948.44)                      

33 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

A. Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss

1. Actuarial gain/(loss) on Defined Benefit Obligations 33.12                                                  (7.75)                            
Income Tax Effect -                                                      -                                

2. Net gain/(loss) on FVTOCI Equity securities 102.42                                                 217.09                         
Income Tax Effect -                                                        -                                

B. Items that will  be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss -                                                        -                                

135.55                                              209.34                        

Details of CSR expenditure :-

The Company has constituted a CSR Committee in pursuance to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has formulated CSR Policy. The Company is required to spend in 
every financial year at least 2% of the average net profits of the company during the immediately 3 preceding financial years.

(i) Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled
by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting
Standard, 

Amount has been deposited in separate CSR bank account
of the company and shall be spent towards CSR activities/
projects in due course of time within the statutory time
limit.
Promotion of education, health care, Empowering women,
setting up old age homes, animal welfare etc.

For the year ended
31st March 2024

 (h) Nature of CSR activities, 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Ref.

Ref.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Note No. 34 Category - Wise Classification of Financial Instruments

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Financial Assets

Measured at Amortised Cost

Investments 11.52                                11.52                                -                                     -                                     

Trade Receivables -                                     -                                     29,580.15                        22,443.03                        

Cash & cash equivalents -                                     -                                     1,535.82                          1,449.12                          

Other Bank balances -                                     -                                     469.20                              1,315.10                          

Loans -                                     -                                     43.64                                40.16                                

Other Financial Assets 439.29                              451.76                              541.11                              111.06                              

Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Investments 15,368.54                        18,773.70                        144.82                              -                                     

Measured at Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income
Investments 2,877.55                          725.23                              -                                     -                                     
Total Financial Assets 18,696.90                      19,962.21                      32,314.74                      25,358.47                      

Financial Liabilities

Measured at Amortised Cost

Borrowings 348.56                              182.20                              7,673.91                          9,041.45                          

Lease Liabilities 1.02                                   94.00                                90.44                                98.91                                

Trade Payables -                                     -                                     18,470.25                        14,981.01                        

Other Financial Liabilities 39.58                                38.39                                2,547.80                          1,685.18                          

Total Financial Liabilities 389.17                             314.60                             28,782.41                      25,806.55                      

PARTICULARS
NON- CURRENT CURRENT

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Note No.  35 - Fair Value Measurements Of Financial Instruments

The following table provides Fair Value measurement hierarchy of company's financial asset and financial liabilities:

Particulars
 Fair Value 

Hierarchy (Level) 
31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Financial Assets
Measured at Amortised Cost
Investments 3 11.52                          11.52                            
Loans 3 43.64                          40.16                            
Other Financial Assets 3 980.40                       562.82                         

Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investments 2 15,513.36                 18,773.70                   

Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Investments 1 2,877.55                    725.23                         
Total Financial Assets 19,426.47                20,113.43                 

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended 31st March 2024.

Note No. 36 - Financial Risk Management - Objectives and Policies

(i) Market Risk

a. Foreign Currency Risk

The financial instruments are categorised into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 3: Inputs are based on unobservable market data.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

The company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables, other financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s financial assets include investments, trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, other bank balances and loans. The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk.
The Company has a Risk management policy and its management is supported by a Risk management committee that advises on risks and the appropriate
risk governance framework for the Company. The Risk management committee provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s risk
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises two types of risk: currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include FVTOCI
investments and FVTPL investments. 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a foreign currency exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities which is minimal. The
Company monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations on continuous basis and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company and
for taking risk mitigation measures. Since the Company's foreign currency risk exposure is limited, therefore, detailed disclosure of the same has not been
provided.
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b. Equity Price Risks

Equity Price Sensitivity
  

Particulars
Investment
Price Change +5% -5% +5% -5%
Effect on Profit before Tax 49.09                        (49.09)                        36.73                            (36.73)                       

(ii) Credit Risks

Trade Receivables

(iii) Liquidity Risk

Less than 1 Year Between 1 to 5 
Years

Total Carrying Value

As at 31st March, 2024
Borrowings (Refer Note No. 15, 20) 7,673.91                  348.56                       8,022.48                      8,022.48                   
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note No. 16) 90.44                        1.02                            91.46                            91.46                         
Trade Payables (Refer Note No. 21) 18,470.25                -                              18,470.25                   18,470.25                 
Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note No. 17, 22) 2,547.80                  39.58                          2,587.39                      2,587.39                   

As at 31st March, 2023
Borrowings (Refer Note No. 15, 20) 9,041.45                  182.20                       9,223.65                      9,223.65                   
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note No. 16) 98.91                        94.00                          192.91                         192.91                       
Trade Payables (Refer Note No. 21) 14,981.01                -                              14,981.01                   14,981.01                 
Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note No. 17, 22) 1,685.18                  38.39                          1,723.57                      1,723.57                   

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

981.89
31st March 2023

734.64
31st March 2024

The Company’s listed and non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment
securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments/mutual
funds. Reports on the investment portfolio are submitted to the Company’s management on a regular basis. 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). 

The following table shows the effect of price changes in quoted and unquoted equity shares , quoted and unquoted equity mutual funds/fixed maturity plan.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all the customers. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are

grouped into homogenous group and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on credit losses historical data. The maximum exposure

to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables disclosed as the Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company has

evaluated the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries.

Liquidity risk is the risk that Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. 

The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial asset and liabilities.
The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities
agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner. 

The table below analyse financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow. 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Note No. 37 -  Capital Management

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
                       6,560.80                      7,935.99 
                     32,672.32                   32,524.33 
                               0.20                              0.24 

Note No. 38 - Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates And Assumptions

(i) Judgements

a. Equity Investments measured at FVTOCI 

b. Business Model for Investment of Debt Instruments

(ii) Estimates and assumptions 

a. Defined benefit plans

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods .

* Net debt = non-current borrowings + current borrowings + current maturities of non-current borrowings + interest accrued – cash and cash equivalents.

Net debt to equity ratio

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

The company has exercised the option to measure investment in equity instruments, not held for trading at FVTOCI in accordance with Ind AS 109. It has
exercised this irrevocable option for its class of quoted equity shares. The option renders the equity instruments elected to be measured at FVTOCI non-
recyclable to Statement of Profit & Loss. 

For the purpose of measuring investments in debt instruments in accordance with Ind AS 109, the company has evaluated and determined that the business
model for investments in quoted debentures and bonds is to collect the contractual cash flows and sell the financial asset. Such financial assets have been
accordingly classified and measured at FVTOCI. For the purpose of measuring investments in debt instruments in accordance with Ind AS 109, the company
has evaluated and determined that the business model for investments in unquoted debentures and bonds is only to collect the contractual cash flows. Such
financial assets have been accordingly classified and measured at amortised cost. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.  

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. Further details
about gratuity obligations are given in Note No. 40.4.

Total equity

Particulars
Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Net Debts*

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
- Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and
- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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b. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

c. Depreciation / amortization and useful lives of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets 

d. Impairment of non-financial asset

e. Taxes

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer Note
No 33.

Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortized over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual
value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation /
amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar
assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are significant changes
from previous estimates. 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.  

Determination of the recoverable amount involves management estimates on highly uncertain matters, such as commodity prices and their impact on
markets and prices for upgraded products, development in demand, inflation, operating expenses and tax and legal systems. The Company uses internal
business plans, quoted market prices and the Company’s best estimate of commodity prices, currency rates, discount rates and other relevant information. A
detailed forecast is developed for a period of three to five years with projections thereafter. The Company does not include a general growth factor to
volumes or cash flows for the purpose of impairment tests, however, cash flows are generally increased by expected inflation and market recovery towards
previously observed volumes is considered. 

The Company calculates income tax expense based on reported income. Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the
carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax basis that are considered temporary in nature. Valuation of
deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of future recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from
expected taxable income in the future, planned transactions or planned tax optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different
conclusion regarding recoverability.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 

39 1. Basis of Preparation

a. Company overview

b. Statement of Compliance

c. Functional and Presentation Currency

d. Historical Cost Convention

(i)
(ii)
(ii) Property, Plant & Equipment

e. Fair Value Measurement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and other
relevant provision of the Act. The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company adopted IND AS from 01st April, 2017. 

With effect from 1st April, 2019, Ind AS 116 – “Leases” (IndAS 116) supersedes Ind AS 17 – “Leases”. The Company has adopted Ind
AS 116 using the prospective approach. The application of Ind AS 116 has resulted into recognition of ‘Right-of-Use’ asset with a
corresponding Lease Liability in the Balance Sheet.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (₹), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
been rounded off to the nearest two decimals of lakh, unless otherwise indicated. 

The financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting on a historical cost basis, except for the
following which are measured at fair value:
Certain financial assets and liabilities
Defined benefit plans

A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require fair value measurement for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement, as under: 

ECE Industries Limited ("the Company" or ECE) is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Transformer, Elevators’
Components, Switchgear and Chemical unit, it's also engaged in the erection and installation of Elevator. The Company has
manufacturing facilities at Hyderabad (Andhra Pradesh), Sonepat (Haryana), and Ghaziabad (Uttar Pradesh).

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India, and has its registered office at ECE House, 28
Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi 110001, India.

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level II - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable.
Level III -  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement, at the end of each reporting period.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.  
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f. Current Versus Non-Current Classification

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

g. Use of Estimates and Judgements

h. Foreign Currency Transactions

At each reporting date, the Management analyse the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-
measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs
applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset or liability is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following condition: 
the asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled in normal operating cycle;
the asset is intended for sale or consumption;
the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
the asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after the reporting period;
the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period;

in the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures and
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The revisions in
accounting estimates and assumptions are recognised prospectively. Detailed information about estimates and judgements is
included in Note No. 38.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates on the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
at the reporting date. Exchange difference arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on net basis. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item i.e., translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of
Profit and Loss, respectively. 
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i. Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Recognition & Measurement

(ii)

(iii)

j Intangible Assets

k Lease Accounting

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. 

All items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost of an
item of PPE includes its purchase cost, non-refundable taxes and duties, directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working 
condition for its intended use and borrowing cost if the recognition criteria is met. 

Subsequent costs are included in an item of PPE‘s carrying value or recognised as a separate item, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred. 

Depreciation methods, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Value

Depreciation on all items of PPE is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual value, over
their estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act except for certain items where the management estimates the life
indifferently basis the usage of such items. 

Depreciation on an item of PPE purchased/sold during the year is provided on pro-rata basis. Freehold land is not depreciated. The
residual values are not more than 5% of the cost of an item of PPE. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of PPE or any significant part thereof is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of PPE is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
On transition to Ind As, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised as at
April 01, 2016, measured as per previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

Intangible assets such as Software, Design & Development, Patents etc. are amortized based upon their estimated useful lives of 5-6
years.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of PPE at fair value and use that as the deemed cost of such
PPE.

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset.

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.
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l Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:-

m Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

Subsequent measurement:

a.

b.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of
the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

Leasehold land with perpetual right has been included in property plant & equipment. 

Raw materials,
stores, spares,
other materials and
traded goods

Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they
will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on first in first out
basis. 

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finished goods and
Work-in- progress
(own 
manufactured)

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

Work in Progress
(Long Term
Contracts)

Work in Progress i.e. jobs under execution (including materials supplied to clients under the
contract) to the extent of work done but not billed is valued at the lower of actual cost incurred upto
the completion on reporting date and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials, labour and
proportionate overheads. 

Scrap Net Realizable Value

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for obsolete/old inventories is made, wherever required, as per the consistently followed system.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of Financial Assets, which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are adjusted to the fair value on
initial recognition. Purchase and sale of Financial Assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:

The Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and

 The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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a.

b.

c.

A. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(i)

(ii)

B.  Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:

(i)

(ii)

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows, and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments (Refer Note 33 for further details). Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. 

Under the effective interest method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the
effective interest rate. The cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial
recognition amount and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the
financial asset over the relevant period of the financial asset to arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The
corresponding effect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as interest income over the relevant period
of the financial asset. The same is included under other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and 

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category applies to certain investments in equity instruments (Refer Note 33 for further details). Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income and impairment losses and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. 
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C. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of Financial Assets:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain investments in equity
instruments at FVTOCI (Refer Note 32 for further details). The Company has made such election on an instrument by instrument
basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration recognized under a business
combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments are recognized
in OCI. However, the Company recognizes dividend income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is not reclassified from the equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within
equity.

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained above. This is a residual
category applied to all other investments of the Company (Refer Note 33 for further details). Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized (i.e.
removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs: 

The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires; 
The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 

The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset); 

The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the
financial asset.

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but
retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognize such financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The financial asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI), the difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following: 
Trade receivables
Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables) 
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognized as loss allowance. 
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(ii) Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement: 

Subsequent measurement: 

Derecognition:

m Impairment

In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-
month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to
lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. 

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-
month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting
date. 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of outcomes,
taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The
provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted
for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are updated. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

The Company recognizes a financial liabilities in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All Financial Liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. 

All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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n Income Tax

(i) Current Tax

(ii) Deferred Tax

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to,
significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment. 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. To calculate
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is the best estimate of the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal. 

Impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in depreciation and amortisation
expense. Impairment losses are reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised. 

Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates
to an item recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or in equity as the case may be. 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustments to the tax payable in
respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax asset is also recognised in respect of
carried forward tax losses and unused tax credits.  

Deferred Tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences, carried forward tax losses and unused tax credits.  

Deferred Tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.  

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.  

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off
corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company. 
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o Revenue Recognition 

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Sale of Goods

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met for main revenue streams of the company for its recognition :

The Company recognises revenue when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the
buyer and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Sale of Contract Jobs
Revenue on long term contracts is recognized on the basis of percentage of completion method which is based on specified
milestone or in proportionate to the work completed against each contract which are fixed price contract. Provisions are made for
the entire loss on a contract irrespective of the amount of work done. Claims on account of price variation receivable / payable
from / to the customers are accounted for on the basis of contractual terms. Final adjustments towards estimated claims for extra
work are made in the year of settlement.

Income from Services
Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.

Interest
Revenue is recognized using effective interest method.

Dividend
Revenue is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet date.

Royalties
Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Income Distributed by Venture Capital Fund
Revenue received from Investments made in Venture Capital Funds is recognized on actual receipt basis and are shown in
respective heads of Income in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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p

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

q Borrowing Costs

r Earnings per Share

Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is a post employment benefit plan under which the Company pays contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company recognises the contributions
payable towards the provident fund as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related
services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plan

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed as the relative service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g. towards bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably.  

Defined contribution plan

A defined benefit plan is a post employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company has funded Gratuity
liability towards this which is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation made by an external valuer at the end of each financial
year using the projected unit credit method and is contributed to the Gratuity Fund formed by the company. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are immediately
recognised in the balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to Other Equity through OCI. Remeasurements are not classified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.   

Net interest and changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. 

Other long term employee benefits

The liabilities for earned leave are measured and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation made by an external valuer at the end
of each financial year using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss  in the period in which they arise. 

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowings costs eligible for capitalisation. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Transaction costs in respect of long-term borrowings
are amortised over the tenor of respective loans using effective interest method. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences
to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss before OCI for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.  

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the post tax
effect of finance costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the issue of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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t Cash Dividend to Equity Shareholders

u Provisions

v. Segment

w Events after Reporting date

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.  

Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are measured at present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to liability. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size
or nature are only disclosed. 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(CODM). 

Identification of segments: 
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services
provided, with each segment representing strategic business unit/units that/those offer/offers different products and serve/serves 
different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company
operate.

Inter Segment Transfer:
The Company generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties at current
market prices.

Allocation of common costs: 
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to the total common
costs.

Unallocated items: 
Unallocated items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with remaining
maturity of 12 months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

The Company recognises a liability to make distribution of cash dividend to equity shareholders of the Company when the
distribution is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. 
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ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

40 Other Notes on Accounts

40.1 Commitments & Contingent Liabilities : 2023-24 2022-23

(a) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of :

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, are as given below :
(i) -                                  -                            
(i) 43.40                            43.40                       
(ii) 0.60                               0.60                          

(b) Other Claims :
Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, are as given below** :
Labour Cases 2.00*** 2.00***
Demands raised by Provident Fund / Employee State Insurance department 1.55*** 1.55***
Other Claims 26.40*** 26.40***

**

***

40.2 Segment Information

(a) Business Segments:

(b) Geographical Segments:

(c) Primary segment information (by Business segments)

(d) Significant Segment Information Disclosure:                

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue
Revenue from operation 51,769.71              42,984.50           18,897.21        14,547.72          70,666.92               57,532.21                          
Other Income 26.28                       446.68                 123.28              36.62                   149.56                     483.30                                
Total income 51,795.99            43,431.18         19,020.48      14,584.33       70,816.47             58,015.51                       
Results
Segment results Profit/(Loss) 3,878.31                 4,170.74             777.34              341.74                4,655.64                  4,512.48                            

Finance Cost (911.07)                    (970.83)                              
Unallocated Corporate Income (Net) 1,075.88                  905.06                                
Exceptional Income/(Expense) -                                       
Profit before Tax 4,820.45                4,446.71                          
Tax Expense 1,984.93                  684.45                                
Net Profit 2,835.52                3,762.25                          

Other Information
Segment Assets 39,778.54              33,109.68           10,510.45        8,351.11            50,288.99               41,460.79                          
Unallocated Corporate Assets 21,625.18               25,688.75                          
Total Assets 71,914.17             67,149.54                       

Segment Liabilities 20,954.68              16,754.94           8,840.92           7,133.61            29,795.60               23,888.55                          
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 9,446.26                  10,736.66                          
Total Liabilities 39,241.86             34,625.21                       

Capital Expenditure 795.53                     267.94                 277.72              277.72                1,073.25                  545.66                                
Corporate Office Capital Expenditure 71.53                        145.67                                

Total Capital Expenditure 1,144.78                691.33                              

Depreciation & Amortisation 248.40                     223.52                 83.91                 54.59                   332.31                     278.11                                
Unallocated Depreciation 137.20                     122.93                                

Total Depreciation 469.52                    401.04                              

Other Non Cash Expenses
Provision for Doubtful Debts -                            -                        439.84              286.27                439.84                     286.27                                
Provision for Impairment of  Assets -                        -                       -                                       

40.3 Basic and diluted Earning per share
2023-24 2022-23

Profit/(Loss) for the year ₹ in lakh 2,835.52                          3,762.25                      
Equity Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year Numbers 50,42,449                          67,22,596                   
Equity Shares Outstanding at the year end Numbers 37,81,845                          50,42,449                   
Weighted Average Number of equity shares Numbers 41,85,929                          53,73,881                     
Earnings Per Share (₹) 67.74 70.01

40.4 Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard- 19 (Employees' Benefit)

Since the Company does not exports and operates in the domestic market which is governed by the same risks and returns, no geographical information is provided.

Electrical Equipment for Power 
Transmission and Distribution

Elevator 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Total

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

As of 31st March, 2024, there are three business segments i.e. Electrical Equipments for Power Transmission and Distribution (comprising of Transformer and Switchgear), Elevator and  Chemical. A description of the types of 
products and services provided by each reportable segment is as follows:

i)  Electrical Equipments for Power Transmission and Distribution – the Company deals in manufactures and supplies power and distributes transformers and switchgear.
ii) Elevator Division manufactures equipments/ components of elevators for execution of jobs for erection and installation and also for supplies to other parties in the market.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan and leave encashment plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed 
year of service and every employee who discontinues his services to the company  gets leave encashment (last drawn salary). 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plan (based on Actuarial Valuation)

The following table presents revenue and profit information regarding business segments for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and certain assets and liability information regarding business segments at March 
31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

 Excise Duty & Service Tax 
 Sales Tax / VAT / Work Contract Tax etc. 

Particulars

 Cess & Others  

The Management feels that the Company has a good chance of success in above mentioned cases hence no provision there against is considered necessary.

In view of large number of cases pending at various Forums / Courts, it is not practicable to give the details of each case. List also includes certain labour matters for which amount of
liability is not ascertainable at this stage.

77



Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

(a) Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)
Current service cost 76.96                   71.62                        38.75                                  49.78                              
Interest cost on benefit obligation 57.40                   50.29                        24.37                                  20.96                              
Expected return on Plan Assets (56.65)                 (50.06)                      -                                       -                                  
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognised in the year                             -                                     -   (22.76)                                 (15.55)                            
Net benefit expense                    77.70                          71.85 40.36                                                               55.19 

(b) Balance Sheet:
Defined benefit obligation 857.03                804.02                     363.45                                338.34                           
Fair value of plan assets (832.43)              (763.64)                    -                                                                              -   

Net Liability arising from defined benefit obligation 24.60                                          40.39 363.45                                                          338.34 

(c) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 804.02                714.28                     338.34                                295.86                           
Interest cost                     57.40                           50.29                                     24.37                                 20.96 
Current service cost 76.96                   71.62                                                            38.75                                 49.78 
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience variance                   (33.86)                           22.18 -                                       -                                  
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from change in financial assumption                        2.88                        (15.14) -                                       -                                  
Benefits paid                   (50.37)                        (39.22) (15.24)                                 (12.71)                            
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation                             -                                     -   (22.76)                                 (15.55)                            
Closing defined benefit obligation 857.03                                    804.02                                 363.45                             338.34 

(d) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
 Opening fair value of plan assets 763.64                668.46                                                                 -                                          -   
 Expected return on plan assets                     56.65                           50.06                                             -                                          -   
 Contributions by employer                     10.00                           45.82                                             -                                          -   
 Withdraw                             -                                     -                                               -                                          -   
Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) on return plan assets                        2.14                           (0.70)                                             -                                          -   

 Closing fair value of plan assets 832.43                                    763.64                                             -                                          -   

(e) Other Comprehensive Income are as follows:
Return on plan assets(excluding amounts included in net interest Expense                        2.14                           (0.70)                                             -                                          -   
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustment                   (33.86) 22.18                                                                    -                                          -   
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from change in financial assumption                        2.88 (15.14)                                                                  -                                          -   

(33.12)               7.75                                                                      -                                          -   

(f) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
2023-24 2022-23

% %
 Investments with insurer 100 100

(g)

Attrition Rate 10%/30%/20%' * 10%/30%/20%' *
 Imputed Rate of Interest(D) 7.24% 7.37%
 Imputed Rate of Interest(IC) 7.37% 7.24%
 Salary Rise 8.00% 8.00%
 Return on Plan Assets 7.37% 7.24%
 Remaining Working Life 21.84 21.24
 Mortality Rate(Table) 

IAL 2012-14 Ultimate
IAL 2012-14 

Ultimate

* 30.00% for Sales personnels, 20.00% for Technical staff and 10.00% for rest of the employees in Elevators Division.

 Attrition Rate 10%/30%/20%' * 10%/30%/20%' *
 Imputed Rate of Interest(D) 7.24% 7.37%
 Imputed Rate of Interest(IC) 7.37% 7.24%
 Salary Rise 8.00% 8.00%
 Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.
 Remaining Working Life 21.84 21.24
 Mortality Rate(Table) 

IAL 2012-14 Ultimate
IAL 2012-14 

Ultimate

* 30.00% for Sales personnels, 20.00% for Technical staff and 10.00% for rest of the employees in Elevators Division.

(h) Disclosure 
The amounts for the Non-Current and Current in respect of gratuity and Leave are as follows

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Current Portion of defined benefit obligation 374.00                346.87                                                       205.68                              208.21 
Non-Current Portion of defined benefit obligation 483.03                457.16                                                       157.77                              130.13 

(i) The Impact of sensitivity analysis on defined benefit plan is given below:-

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Attrition rate increase by 1% (1.46)                   (1.12)                         (0.17)                                   (0.12)                               
Attrition rate decrease by 1% 1.54                     1.18                           0.19 0.13
Salary growth rate increase by 1% 22.78                   22.04                        6.02 5.30
Salary growth rate decrease by 1% (21.44)                 (20.76)                      (5.66)                                   (4.99)                               
Imputed  rate of return rate increase by 1% (21.39)                 (20.69)                      (5.65)                                   (4.97)                               
Imputed  rate of return rate decrease by 1% 23.17                   22.39                        6.12                                     5.38                                

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

LeaveGratuity

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Gratuity Leave 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The Principal assumptions used in determining leave obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
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40.5

40.6

40.6

40.7

40.8

41

I. Names of Related Parties

A Key Management Personnel
Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta Chairman &  Managing Director
Mr. Rajat Sharma Chief Financial Officer

B Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Sakate Khaitan Director

C Persons having singnificant influence

Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta has significant influence in the following Companies:
(i) Bhiragacha Finance Company Pvt. Ltd.
(ii) Diplomat Ltd
(iii) Ircon Trading & Mfg. Pvt. Ltd.*

 (iv) P P Packagings Pvt Ltd (a 100% subsidiary of Universal Autocraft Pvt. Ltd.)*
(v) Nikita PackagingPvt. Ltd.*
(vi) Universal Prime Aluminium Limited*
(vii) Universal Enterprises Ltd*

* Enterprises ceases to be related party from 12.01.2022.

D Wholly owned Subsidiaries

(i) ECE Transformers Limited

(ii) ECE Elevators Limited

II. Transactions with Key Management Personnel are as under:

Nature of Transactions 2023-24 2022-23
Salary/Perquisites 510.21                 481.82              
Provident/Superannuation Fund 84.79                    80.33                 
Dividend Paid during the year 85.28                    68.02                 
Sitting Fees 0.20                      0.18                    

*   Excluding Gratuity and Leave Encashment provision on actuarial basis.

III. Transactions with enterprises over which Key Management Personnel exercise significant influence are as under:

Particulars Loan Received
Loan 

Paid/Refund

Sales of 
Goods/Assets

/Other 
Services

Purchase of 
Goods/Assets/
Other Services

Interest Paid Interest Received Invetsment 

Payment of 
services & 

Reimbursement 
of expenses 

Receipt of 
Services 

Rendered

(i) Bhiragacha Finance Company Pvt. Ltd. -                            -                        -                      -                         -                              -                                       -                                  -                             -                     
(356.39)                   (350.00)               -                      -                       -                             (6.39)                                   -                                  -                             -                     

(ii) Diplomat Ltd -                            -                        -                      -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             -                     
(41.94)                     (41.94)                  -                      -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             -                     

(iii) P P Packagings Pvt Ltd -                            -                        0.36                    -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             0.36                   
-                            -                        (1.02)                  -                       -                             -                                         -                                  -                             (1.02)                 

(v) Universal Enterprises Ltd -                            -                        1.10                    -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             1.10                   
-                            -                        (1.37)                  (0.08)                   -                             -                                       -                                  (0.08)                         (1.37)                 

(vi) Universal Prime Aluminium Limited -                            325.00                 1.23                    2.15                     42.94                        -                                       -                                  2.15                           1.23                   
-                            -                        (1.25)                  (3.07)                   -                             -                                       -                                  (3.07)                         (1.25)                 

(vi) Ircon Trading & Mfg. Pvt. Ltd. -                            -                        0.84                    -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             0.84                   
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             -                     

(vii) Nikita PackagingPvt. Ltd. -                            -                        2.47                    -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             2.06                   
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             -                     

(viii) ECE Transformers Limited -                            -                        -                      -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             -                     
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                             -                                       (1.00)                               -                             -                     

(ix) ECE Elevators Limited -                            -                        -                      -                       -                             -                                       -                                  -                             -                     
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                             -                                       (1.00)                               -                             -                     

* Figures in Brackets represents previous year figure.

The Company had made claims against Uttar Haryana Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (UHBVN) for refund of liquidated damages deducted by the Electricity Board as well as interest on delayed payment of bills/due instalments by the
Electricity Board. The arbitrator, appointed by the chairman, UHBVN, had given award in favour of the Company which was subsequently confirmed by the Additional Distt. Judge, Panchkula (Haryana). The Electricity Board has,
however, filed an appeal with the Hon’ble High Court, Punjab & Haryana. While admitting the appeal, the Hon’ble High Court passed an interim order dated 25.08.2009, directing the Electricity Board to pay to the company a sum of
INR 608.08 lakh against bank guarantee of the same amount as security to the Electricity Board. The Electricity Board has made payment against bank guarantee given to them as security. As the matter is still sub-judice, the amount
is lying in Other Non Current Liabilities.

During the F.Y 2016-17, a suit in the court of Civil Judge (Sr. Div.) Sealdah, West Bengal for recovery of possession of land and structure thereon which was taken on rent by the company was filed by the Lessor on expiration of lease
by efflux of time. The court order was passed to hand over the possession of the suit property and the company to pay mesne profit and occupational charges till hand over of the possession to the lessor. In the year 2014, the
property was handed over to the lessor by the company.  The matter went upto High Court at Calcutta and is still pending in the Civil court. A sum of INR 881.33 lakh has been provided in books of account towards such charges.
 
During the Previous FY 2022-23, the management of the company come to know that Govt. of West Bengal had already filed a suit in the court of Ld. Civil Judge (Sr. Division) at Sealdah, vide Misc. case No. 11 of 2019, Title Execution
case No. 01/2011 (arising T.S. No. 12/97 & decreed on 18.12.2010) against Raj Luxmi Investment and Trading Co Ltd. and ECE Industries Limited pleading that Raj Luxmi Investment and Trading Co Ltd mislead the Govt. and played
fraud on Govt. by producing a sale deed which is void one as neither earliest lessee nor anybody else has any right to sell Khas Mahal land to any person except Govt. Dept. interse. 
Further, On July 10, 2023, Land and Land Reforms and R.R. & R Department, Land Policy Branch, Govt. of West Bengal has issued a notification vide notification no. 2701-LP/1A-03/23, and claimed that the property being holding
No. 1-5-186A, Premises No. 9, K. P. Singhi Road, Kolkata – 700002 is the Khas Mahal Land and under the direct control and Supervision of the petitioner i.e. ADM & DL & LRO, South 24, Parganas, Govt. of W.B.. 
In view of the above, the management has decided to write back the provision of Rs. 881.33 Lakh provided in the year 2016-17.  

During the F.Y 2016-17, the company on the order passed by Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad has provided INR 266.11 lakh.  The amount was charged towards any unexpected outcome of the challenge testing ordered 
by the Court to be conducted at Central Power Research Institute to establish that the transformers which were supplied to The Southern Power Distribution Company of Telangana Limited were within technical parameters as 
mentioned in the purchase order. 

During the Previous FY 2022-23, the management has written back the provision created for Rs. 266.11 Lakh after the settlement with Southern Power transmission limited.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Related Party Disclosure :

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company bought back 12,60,610 fully paid equity shares of ₹ 10/- each at a price of ₹ 175/- per share aggregating to ₹22,06,06,750/- from the existing equity shareholders of the Company in
accordance with section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

During the FY 2022-23, a cyber fraud happened at the transformer division of the company at Sonipat and Rs. 199 lakh was frauduently transferred from company's bank accounts to some unknown accounts. Management had filed
FIR with Police station - cyber, Sonipat Haryana. The complaints with Reserve bank of India Banking ombudsman and Bank of Baroda were also filed. The amount was written off as loss on account of Cyber fraud, under exceptional
items in the FY 2022-23.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Related party Disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard -24 issued under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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IV. Amount of outstanding balances are as under:

Nature of Transactions 2023-24 2022-23

Salary/Perquisites 17.17                    37.53                  
Provident/Superannuation Fund 84.79                    3.22                     
Borrowings 231.00               556.00             
Trade receivable (net) 0.42                     -                     
Net off Reiumbersment (received)
- ECE Transformers Limited 0.43                     -                     
- ECE Elevators Limited 0.33                     -                     

42 Financial Ratios

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Variance %

1.4 1.4 0.00%
0.09 0.11 -18.18%

5.14 4.89
5.11

2.75 2.85 -3.51

3.28 3.76 -12.77

5.11 4.77
7.13

0.04 0.06
-33.33%

0.15 0.12 24.99%

0.13 0.06 116.67%
0.25 0.29 -14.48%

0.52 0.55 -5.45%

43 Other statutory information

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

44 Events after the Reporting Period

45

As per our report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates                   For and on behalf of Boards of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

          Sd/-
(Vinod Sahni)
   Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

The Board of Directors have recommended dividend of Rs.15/- per fully paid up equity share of Rs.10/- each for the financial year 2023-24

Previous year figures has been reclassified/regrouped to confirm current year figures.

Working Capital

Note -ii - The ratio has improved due to increase in Returns on Investments and average investment decreased due to sales proceeds from Investments.

Average Investments

Net Profit ratio (in %)  (Note -i)

Return on Capital employed (in %)

Income from Investments

Net operating income
Total debt Debt Equity ratio Equity shareholder's fund

The Company has not made any further investments in any company, hence, clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable on the Company.

During the current financial year, the Company has not undertaken any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

During the current financial year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium) to any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (intermediaries).

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
 i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identiϐied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneϐiciaries) or
 ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneϐiciaries.

Return on investment (in %) (Note -ii)

Total debt service

Gross Revenue from sale
of products and services

Gross Revenue from sale of 
products and services

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Debt service coverage ratio

Note -i - The ratio has decreased due to decrease in profit after tax and increase in revenue from operations.

Profit for the year

Profit before interest and
taxes

Average Capital employed

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
 i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identiϐied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneϐiciaries) or
 ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneϐiciaries.

Average Shareholder’s Equity
Current liabilities

Ratios

Current assets
Profit for the year

Current Ratio (in times)

Average InventoriesInventory turnover Ratio (in times)

Net Capital turnover ratio (in times)
Average Trade payablesNet purchasesTrade Payables turnover ratio (in times)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Numerator

Gross Revenue from sale
of products and services

Average Trade receivablesGross Revenue from sale
of products and services

Return on Equity Ratio (in %)

Denominator

Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times)

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 
DIN: 00191299 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 
DIN: 01248200 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal Korani)

Director 
DIN: 00041923 

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)

President & CFO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To 
The Members 
ECE Industries Limited 
 

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ECE Industries Limited, (‘the 
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these  consolidated financial statements that give a 
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true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the  consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Company are 
responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
Company. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
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planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 
of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identified during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books.  

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income and Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e)  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements of those companies. 

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial statements as 
detailed in Note 24 and 40 to the Financial Statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
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entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:  

 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding 
Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India or  
 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

 
b)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India shall:  

 
 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding 
Parties or  

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 

 
c)   Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under subclause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any material misstatement. 

 
v) The final dividend proposed for the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the 
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable. 
 
As stated in Note 44 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the 
Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Such dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 
of the Act, as applicable. 
 
vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from 1 April 2023. Based on our examination which included test checks the Company has used 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software.  
 

2. In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2024 has been 
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act. 
 

3. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of 
the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to 
us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in 
the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, 
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports 

                      for VSD & Associates 
                                                                  Chartered Accountants 

                        F.R.No.008726N 
 

          Sd/- 
                                                                                     (Vinod Sahni) 

                  Partner 
            M.No.086666 

Place:  New Delhi 
Dated: 05.09.2024   
UDIN:  24086666BKCAMS2564 
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  ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub –section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ECE Industries Limited as of 
March 31st, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
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assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. 
 

 

                      for VSD & Associates 
                                                                  Chartered Accountants 

                        F.R.No.008726N 
 
 

          Sd/- 
                                                                                     (Vinod Sahni) 

                             Partner 
                        M.No.086666 

    

 

Place:  New Delhi 
Dated: 05.09.2024   
UDIN:  24086666BKCAMS2564 
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Amount (₹ in Lakh)
 As At  As At 

31st March 2024 31st March 2023
I. ASSETS

(1) Non-Current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1A 4,209.31                   3,538.27                               

 (b) Other Intangible assets 1B 0.02                            0.06                                        
(c) Goodwill under Business Combination 70.61                         70.61                                     
(d) Capital work-in-progress 1C 123.89                       213.48                                   
(e) Financial Assets
     (i) Investments 2 18,473.61                 19,508.45                             
    (ii) Other Financial Assets 3 439.29                       451.76                                   
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 -                              503.39                                   
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 5 89.14                         50.64                                     

(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 14,215.01                 13,566.93                             
(b) Financial Assets
     (i)   Investments 2 144.82                       -                                          
     (ii) Trade Receivables 7 29,580.15                 22,443.03                             
    (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8A 1,537.92                   1,451.12                               
     (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 8B 469.20                       1,315.10                               
     (v) Loans 9 43.64                         40.16                                     
    (vi) Other Financial Assets 10 541.31                       111.06                                   
(c) Current Tax Assets 11 1,036.29                   1,419.14                               
(d) Other Current Assets 12 940.26                       2,466.34                               

Total  Assets 71,914.47               67,149.54                           
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 378.35                       504.41                                   
(b) Other Equity 14 32,292.95                 32,019.72                             

(2) Liabilities
(A) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 15 348.56                       182.20                                   
     (ia) Lease Liabilities 16 1.02                            94.00                                     
    (ii) Others 17 39.58                         38.39                                     
(b) Provisions 18 369.13                       249.26                                   
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 556.77                       -                                          
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 19 3,384.07                   3,458.32                               

(B) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 20 7,673.91                   9,041.45                               
     (ia) Lease Liabilities 16 90.44                         98.91                                     
    (ii) Trade Payables 21 18,470.25                 14,981.01                             
    (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 2,549.12                   1,685.38                               
(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 5,116.67                   4,262.89                               
(c) Provisions 24 643.65                       533.60                                   

Total Liabilities 71,914.47               67,149.54                           

Summary of significant Accounting Policies 38

Other Notes to Accounts
34 to 37 & 

39 to 44
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

              Sd/-
(Vinod Sahni)
Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

Particulars Note No.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 
DIN: 00191299 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 
DIN: 01248200 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal Korani)

Director 
DIN: 00041923 

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)
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Amount (₹ in Lakh)
 1st April, 2023 to  1st April, 2022 to 
 31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Inter-Unit Income
Inter-Unit Stock Transfer

Income
Revenue from operations 25 71,409.86                  58,244.50                  
Other Income 26 2,870.88                     2,268.35                     

Total Income 74,280.74                  60,512.85                  
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 54,219.05                  46,222.28                  
Purchases of Traded Goods 11.24                           6.16                              
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and 
Stock-in-Trade

27 (1,026.72)                   (1,779.97)                   

Employee Benefit Expense 28 4,655.73                     3,885.85                     
Finance Costs 29 911.07                        970.83                        
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 30 469.52                        401.04                        
Other Expenses 31 10,221.21                  7,308.56                     

Interest Allocation -                                (0.00)                             
Inter-Unit Expenses -                                -                                 
Inter-Unit Stock Transfer -                                -                                 

Total Expenses 69,461.09                  57,014.76                  

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 4,819.64                     3,498.09                     
Exceptional Items 32 -                                (948.44)                      

Profit / (Loss) after exceptional items and tax 4,819.64                     4,446.53                     

Tax expense/(income)
 (1) Current tax 926.34                        537.73                        
 (2) Current tax for earlier years -                                (0.40)                            
 (3) MAT credit entitlement -                                -                                
 (4) Deferred tax Charge/(Credit) 4 1,058.59                     147.12                        

Profit/(Loss) for the Year 2,834.71                     3,762.07                     

Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit & loss 33 135.55                        209.34                        

(ii) Income -tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
statement of profit & loss

-                                (0.01)                             

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax) 135.55                        209.33                        

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,970.26                     3,971.41                     

Earning per equity share:
  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each
       Basic & Diluted 40.3 67.72                           70.01                           
 
Summary of significant Accounting Policies 38

Other Notes on Accounts 34 to 37 & 
39 to 44

The Notes referred to above from an integral part of Balance Sheet.
As per our Report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

      Sd/-

(Vinod Sahni)
   Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

Particulars

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Note No.

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal 

Korani)

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)

President & CFO
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Particulars
 1st April, 2023 to 
31st March, 2024 

 1st April, 2022 to 
31st March, 2023 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax 4,819.64                                         4,446.53                                        

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 469.52                                            401.05                                            
Fair Value change in Financial Instruments (64.80)                                             (39.33)                                             
Acturial Loss transferred to OCI -                                                     -                                                   
(Profit)/ Loss on disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) -                                                    -                                                   
Net Loss on Derecognition of Investment -                                                    376.25                                            
Net Gain on Derecognition of Investment (1,690.51)                                       
Dividend income on non-current Investments (other than Trade) (66.96)                                             (57.45)                                             
Sundry Balance Written off (92.73)                                             (40.13)                                             
Expenses relating to Buy-back of shares -                                                   
Reversal of Provisions -                                                    (47.40)                                             
Debt, Advance & other debit Balance Written off 66.39                                                 36.67                                                
Finance Costs 911.07                                            970.83                                            
Interest Income (799.21)                                          (1,266.67)                                       
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (4.99)                                                3.59                                                 
KMP insurance expense 10.00                                               10.00                                               
Provision For Doubtful Debts 153.57                                            3.18                                                 
Provision For CSR Expense 52.80                                               27.99                                               
Exceptional Items -                                                    (1,147.44)                                       
Modification gain on financial asset -                                                    (164.34)                                          

Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 3,763.79                                         3,412.52                                        

Movement in Working Capital :
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (7,290.69)                                       (3,948.15)                                       
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (648.07)                                          (3,321.48)                                       
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Receivables 1,504.40                                         (1,460.82)                                       
Increase /( Decrease) in Trade Payables, Other Liabilities & Provisions 5,450.62                                         4,625.33                                        
Cash generated from/ (Used in ) operations 2,780.05                                         (692.60)                                          
Direct Tax Paid (Net) (5.76)                                                413.81                                            

Net cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities 2,774.29                                         (278.79)                                          

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (1,093.71)                                       (802.90)                                          
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment including advance received (72.14)                                             2,277.00                                        
Movement in Capital Advances -                                                     -                                                   
Proceeds from sale of Investments 4,058.74                                         7,885.05                                        
Purchases of Investments (2,948.99)                                        (3,109.71)                                       
Fixed Deposits 846.21                                            (595.66)                                          
Interest Received 778.21                                            2,246.27                                        
Dividend Received 66.96                                               57.45                                               

Net cash from/ (used in) Investing Activities 1,635.28                                         7,957.50                                        

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Borrowings (1,201.18)                                        (2,028.78)                                       
Payment of Lease Liabilities (109.05)                                            (105.89)                                          

Buyback of Equity Shares (2,206.06)                                        (2,436.21)                                       

Redemption of Preference Shares -                                                     (1,322.63)                                       
Finance Costs (995.27)                                            (894.61)                                          
Dividend Paid 188.78                                              (207.02)                                          

Net cash from/ (used in) Financing Activities (4,322.78)                                       (6,995.14)                                       

Net Increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents(A+B+C) 86.80                                               683.57                                            
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,451.12                                         767.55                                           
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,537.92                                         1,451.12                                        

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Consolidated CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Cash on Hand 7.57                                                  10.99                                               
Cheques on Hand -                                                     -                                                   
Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts 835.69                                            1,412.12                                        
In Cash Credit Accounts 67.89                                               -                                                   
Balance with Bank in Margin Money -                                                     -                                                   
Bank Deposits 626.77                                            28.01                                               

Earmarked Balances
In Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 9.47                                                  9.16                                                 

1,547.39                                         1,460.27                                        
9.47                                                  9.16                                                 

1,537.92                                         1,451.12                                        

As per our Report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates                                           For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

(Vinod Sahni)
   Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

Sd/-

Less :- Unclaimed Dividend lying with Bank

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 
DIN: 00191299 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 
DIN: 01248200 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal Korani)

Director 
DIN: 00041923 

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)

President & CFO
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Particulars Face Value (₹)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)

(A) Non-Current Investments

(I ) Investment Measured at Amortised Cost
In Equity Shares of Other Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid
Kesoram Textile Mills Ltd. (Refer Note 2.1) 2 2,25,800                4.52                          2,25,800                 4.52                            
Kesoram Insurance Broking Service Ltd. 10 50,000                   5.00                          50,000                    5.00                            

In Prefernce Shares of other Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid
IL&FS Transportation Network Ltd. 10                                25,00,000               -                           25,00,000                -                              

Total Investment at Amortised Cost (I) 9.52                        9.52                           

In Debentures of Other Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid
CASA Grande Milestone Private Limited (Refer Note 2.6) 100000 210                         218.00                    -                           -                              

Total Investment at Fair Value Through PL (II) 218.00                   -                             

(II) Investment Measured at Fair Value Through OCI
In Equity Shares of Other Companies
Quoted Fully Paid
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 10 4,71,931                827.53                    4,71,931                 725.12                       
Universal Enterprices Limited 10 10,000                   -                           10,000                    -                              
Reliance Capital Limited 10 1                              0.00                          1                                0.00                            

Unquoted Fully Paid
Banashankari Co-operative Housing Society limited 10 5 0.00                          5 0.00                            
Gallant sales pvt. Ltd 10 100 0.01                          100 0.04                            
Gangagham Merchandise Pvt. Ltd 10 100 0.01                          100 0.06                            
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 1 50000 2,050.00                 -                           -                              

Total Investment at Fair Value Through OCI (III) 2,877.55               725.23                     

(III) Investment at Fair Value Through PL
In Mutual Funds
Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund (Refer Note 2.2) 21,42,273.77       748.17                    21,90,425.15        1,188.50                   
Bank of Baroda Mutual Fund 23,09,445.86       330.93                    8,09,530.86           101.02                       

In Venture Capital Fund/Alternative Fund  (Refer 2.6)
ICICI Venture Capital Fund Real Estate Scheme I (Refer Note 
2.4) 10 -                          -                           27,96,738              124.35                       

IIFL Special Oppor. Fund Class A5  (Refer 2.3) 10 38,29,755.78       2,020.69                 3,84,99,078           2,622.98                   
ICICI Prudential Real Estate AIF-I  (Refer 2.5) 100 3,05,885                179.13                    4,29,238                 315.19                       
ICICI Prudential Real Estate AIF-II   (Refer 2.5) 100 36,797.01             25.33                       77,641                    51.52                          
IIFL Income Oppor. Fund Series-II  (Refer 2.3) 10 94,70,477             1,291.35                 94,70,477              1,191.25                   
IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series-II (Refer Note 2.3) 10 -                          -                           2,15,31,489           521.00                       

IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series-III (Refer Note 2.3) 10
61,30,000             141.07                    61,30,000              140.67                       

IIFL Special Opportunities Fund CAT-II AIF (Pre-Ipo) (Refer 
Note 2.4) 10 92,98,232             147.79                    92,98,232              622.76                       

India Business Excellence Fund-III 1000 22,726                   245.45                    24,467                    250.00                       
Indiareit Apartment Fund (Piramal) (Refer 2.3) 100000 -                          -                           465                          535.88                       
India Realty Excelence Fund-III  (Refer 2.5) 100 3,98,801                522.83                    5,02,140                 687.93                       
India Reality Excellence Fund-IV 100 24,13,921             2,679.45                 29,72,811              3,085.78                   
Emerging India Credit Opportunities Fund I 100000 1,620                      1,657.97                 1,557                       1,557.00                   
IIFL Special Opportunities Fund Series-9 (Refer 2.3) 10 1,49,29,254          1,964.97                 1,49,29,254           1,552.18                   
Northern Arc India Impact Fund (Refer 2.3) 100000 1,981                      2,086.25                 1,981                       2,079.65                   
India Realty Excellence Fund-V 100 -                          -                           14,90,075              1,101.37                   
Kotak Pre-Ipo Opportunities Fund 1000 1,26,979                1,239.30                 97,424                    956.00                       
IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series-4 10 16,17,751             87.86                       16,17,751              88.69                          

Total Investment at Fair Value Through PL (IV) 15,368.54              18,773.70                 

Total Non-Current Investments (A=I+II+III+IV) 18,473.61            19,508.45               

As At 
31st March 2024

As At 
31st March 2023

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Consolidated Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet
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Particulars Face Value (₹)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)
Number of 

units/shares
Amount

 (in Lakh)

(B) Current Investments

Investment at Fair Value Through P&L
In Equity Shares of Other Companies
Quoted Fully Paid
HDFC Bank Ltd. 10,000.00             144.82                    -                              

Total Current Investment(B) 144.82                   -                              

Total Investment(A+B) 18,618.43            19,508.45               

2.1
2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars Ref.
As At

31st March 2024
As At

31st March 2023

Security Deposits 69.11                       70.70                          
Deposits with Bank held as margin money 7.13                          7.13                            
Earnest Money Deposits 363.05                    373.93                       

439.29                   451.76                     

4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision and Liabilities 408.04                    299.01                       
Mat Credit Entitlement -                           695.70                       

Gross Deferred Tax Asset (A) 408.04                   994.70                     

Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities
Timing Difference on Depreciable Assets 271.24                    286.76                       
Fair Value of Investments (Net) 693.57                    204.55                       

Gross Deferred Tax Liability (B) 964.80                   491.32                     
Net Deferred Tax Assets (A-B) (556.77)                 503.39                     

5 OTHER NON-CURRENT  ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Capital Advances 38.50                      -                              
Sub-Judicial Matter 50.64                       50.64                          

89.14                      50.64                        

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Received on account of transfer of textile division by Kesoram Industries Ltd. to Kesoram Textile Mills Ltd. during the year 1999-2000.
Lien of Rs. 735.33 Lakh  has been created in accordance with the  terms of Bill Discounting Facility sanctioned by Aditya Birla Finance Limited  respectively Refer to Note No. 20.2.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

All the above funds have been valued on the basis of latest data available with the management.

Lien is created on the said Investment towards allocation of demand loans upto maximum limit of Rs. 8000 Lakh by 360 One Prime Ltd. Refer to Note No. 20.3.

Lien is created on the said Investment towards allocation of demand loans upto maximum limit of Rs. 2100 Lakh by Aditya Birla Finance Limited. Refer to Note No. 20.2.

Lien is created on the said Investment towards towards credit arrangement facility upto maximum limit of Rs. 1000 Lakh by ICICI Bank Limited towards use of Letter of credit for 
operation of the company.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

During the FY 2023-24, the company has purchased 210 units of Unlisted secured redeemable non convertible debentures from two parties. However, the same were reflected 
subsequently after the year end in Demat statement of the company.
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6 INVENTORIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

(Valued at Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)
Raw Materials 4,398.09                 4,815.71                   
Work in Progress 9,734.82                 8,716.87                   
Finished Goods 39.55                       11.18                          
Stores and Spares 24.60                       11.17                          
Scrap at realizable value 17.95                       12.00                          

14,215.01            13,566.93               

7 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Unsecured 7.1
Considered Good 29,580.15              22,443.03                 
Considered Doubtful 439.84                    286.27                       
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (439.84)                   (286.27)                     

29,580.15            22,443.03               

7.1
Balance with customers are subject to confirmations and reconciliations.

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good * 23,794.52                2,567.27                1,346.42               416.51                    1,886.56                   30,011.28         

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -   -                        

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -   -                        

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -   -                        

v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk

 -   1.68                        3.85                         -   3.18                            8.71                     

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -   -                        
Sub-Total 23,794.52              2,568.95              1,350.27               416.51                   1,889.74                  30,019.99         
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables -                            1.68                       3.85                        -                           434.31                     439.84                
Total 23,794.52              2,567.27              1,346.42               416.51                   1,455.43                  29,580.15         

Financial Year - 2022-23

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total

i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good * 17,669.82                1,631.44                1,508.24                 473.60                    1,159.93                   22,443.03         

ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk

-                             -                          -                           -                           -                              -                        

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired -                             -                          -                           -                           -                              -                        

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good -                             -                          -                           -                           283.09                       283.09                

v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase in credit risk

-                             -                          -                           -                           3.18                            3.18                     

vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired -                             -                          -                           -                           -                              -                        
Sub-Total 17,669.82              1,631.44              1,508.24               473.60                   1,446.20                  22,729.30         
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables -                            -                         -                           -                           286.27                     286.27                
Total 17,669.82              1,631.44              1,508.24               473.60                   1,159.93                  22,443.03         

8A CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Balances with Banks:
-in Current Accounts 835.69                    1,412.12                   
-in Cash Credit Accounts 67.89                       -                              
Deposits with Bank 626.77                    28.01                          
Cash on Hand 7.57                          10.99                          

1,537.92               1,451.12                  

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2023

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment as at 31st March 2024

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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8B BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Earmarked Balances with Bank
-in Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 9.47                          9.16                            
Deposit with Banks held as margin money 459.73                    1,305.94                   

469.20                   1,315.10                  

9 CURRENT LOANS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Unsecured considered good
Loan to Staff 43.64                       40.16                          

43.64                      40.16                        

10 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Security Deposits 1.71                          1.51                            
Unbilled Revenue 67.53                       66.76                          
Accrued Interest Receivable 60.26                       39.26                          
Other Receivables 411.81                    3.53                            

541.31                   111.06                     

11 CURRENT TAX ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Income Tax Assets (Net) 1,036.29                 1,419.14                   

1,036.29               1,419.14                   

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Advance to Suppliers 622.43                    418.28                       
Balance with Revenue Authorities 246.46                    566.60                       
Prepaid Expenses 50.04                       29.99                          
Advance for purchase of shares (Refer No 12.1) -                           1,440.00                   
Others 21.33                       11.47                          

940.26                   2,466.34                   

12.1

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

During the FY 2022-23, Advance of Rs14.40 crore paid against purchase of  50000 shares of NSE Ltd.
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13 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Nos.
 Amount

 (₹ in Lakh) 
Nos.

 Amount
 (₹ in Lakh) 

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares
Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each 1,43,00,000          1,430.00                 1,43,00,000           1,430.00                     
Preference shares
Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of  ₹ 10/- each 7,00,000                70.00                       7,00,000                 70.00                           

1,50,00,000       1,500.00               1,50,00,000        1,500.00                  

(b) Issued Share Capital

Equity shares
Equity Shares of   ₹ 10/-  each fully paid 50,87,679             508.77                    67,67,826              676.78                       
Less: Buy Back of Shares (12,60,604)           (126.06)                   (16,80,147)             (168.01)                     

Preference shares
9% non-cumulative Redeemable preference shares -                          -                           -                           -                              

38,27,075           382.71                   50,87,679            508.77                     

(c) Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

Equity shares
Equity Shares of  ₹ 10/-  each fully paid 37,81,845             378.19                    50,42,449              504.24                       
Add: Forfeited Shares (Amount originally paid)       -                          0.17                          -                           0.17                              

Preference shares
 9% Non-cumulative redeemable preference share -                          -                                                           -   -                              

Total Paid-up share capital 37,81,845           378.36                   50,42,449            504.41                       

13.1

Nos
 Amount

 (₹ in Lakh) Nos
 Amount

 (₹ in Lakh) 

Equity shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 10/- 50,42,449             504.25                    67,22,596              672.26                       

Less: Buy Back of Shares (12,60,604)           (126.06)                   (16,80,147)             (168.01)                     
Less: Equity shares converted into Preference shares 10/- -                          -                           -                           -                              

Shares outstanding at the end of the period (A) 37,81,845           378.19                   50,42,449            504.25                     

Preference shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period -                         -                           -                             -                              
Add: Equity shares converted into Preference shares 10/- -                          -                           5,66,049                  56.60                          
Less: Redemption of Pref Shares -                          -                           (5,66,049)               (56.60)                        
Shares outstanding at the end of the period

(B) -                         -                           -                           -                             

(A+B) 37,81,845           378.19                   50,42,449              504.25                       

13.2 Rights preferences and restrictions attached with Shares

Preference share :In Previous Year, the company had redeemed one class of 9% Non-Cumulative compulsory redeemable preference shares having at par value of ₹10 per share with
a Premium of ₹ 223.66 per share. As per the Order of Hon'ble NCLT these preference share can be redeemed within a maximum period of 20 years from the date of issue with a put
and call option available to the Preference Shareholders and the Company for its early redemption.

Particulars

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Face Value

As At March 31 2024

Particulars

As At March 31 2023

As At March 31 2023As At March 31 2024

Equity Shares : The company has redeemed Equity Share having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the 
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation the equity 
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

Add: Shares issued during the year
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13.3 Details of the Shareholders holding more than 5% shares along with number of shares held

No. of Shares 
held

% of Equity 
Shares

No. of Shares 
held

% of Equity 
Shares

Equity shares 

Diplomat Limited                                      -                                   -                   12,57,000                            24.93 
Jayantika  Jatia                                              4,26,198                         11.27                   3,48,451                               6.91 
Maitreyi  Kandoi                                              4,26,197                         11.27                   3,48,447                               6.91 

               17,05,108                         45.09                 20,48,547                            40.63 
Prakash Kumar Mohta (HUF)                  3,48,451                            9.21                                 -                                      -   
Pratibha Khaitan                  4,26,200                         11.27                                 -                                      -   
Maulashree Gani                  4,26,297                         11.27                                 -                                      -   

13.4  Promoter's Shareholding 

S. No.                       Promoter Name  Number of 
Shares 

Held 

 Percentage of 
Total Shares 

 Percentage 
Change during 

the Year 

 Number of 
Shares 

Held 

 Percentage of 
Total Shares 

 Percentage 
Change during 

the Year 
Equity shares

1 Prakash Kumar Mohta                  17,05,108                        45.09 34%                 17,00,096                            33.72 -                        
2 Jayashree Finvest Private Limited                                   -                                  -   -100%                   2,22,124                               4.41 -                        
3 Prakash Kumar Mohta( HUF)                     3,48,451                           9.21 33%                   3,48,451                               6.91 -                        
4 Jayantika  Jatia                     4,26,198                        11.27 63%                   3,48,448                               6.91 -                        
5 Maitreyi  Kandoi                     4,26,197                        11.27 63%                   3,48,447                               6.91 -                        
6 Pratibha Khaitan                     4,26,200 11.27                       63%                   3,48,450 6.91                              -                        
7 Maulashree Gani                     4,26,297 11.27                       63%                   3,48,547 6.91                              -                        
8 Essel Mining & Industries Ltd                                   -                                  -   -100%                       85,730                               1.70 -                        
9 Jayashree Mohta                        11,688                           0.31 35%                       11,688                               0.23 -                        
10 Kumar Mangalam Birla                                   -                                  -   -100%                         6,750                               0.13 -                        
11 Sakate Khaitan                              200                           0.01 0%                             200                                    -   -                        
12 Diplomat limited                                   -                                  -   100%                 12,57,000                            24.93 -                        

13.5 Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up bought back

14 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Securities Premium
As per last Balance Sheet -                           2,150.19                   
Add: Transfer from General Reserve -                           1,384.04                   
Less: Utilised for Buy Back of Equity Shares -                           2,268.20                   
Less: Utilised for Redemption of Preference Shares -                           1,266.03                   

(A) -                           -                             

Capital Redemption Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 507.88                    283.26                       
Add: Transfer from General Reserve 126.06                    224.62                       

(B) 633.94                   507.88                     

General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 4,009.35                 6,143.89                   
Less: Transfer to Securities Premium -                           1,384.04                   
Less: Utilised for Buy Back of Equity Shares 2,080.00                 -                              
Less: Transfer to Share Buy Back 126.06                    224.62                       
less : Tax on share buy back 427.91                    525.88                       

(C) 1,375.38               4,009.35                  

As At March 31 2023
  

As At March 31 2024

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

In FY 2022-23, the company bought back 16,80,147 equity shares amounting to ₹2436.21Lakhs. The Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of ₹168.01 Lakhs equal to 
the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from General Reserve.

Prakash Kumar Mohta

As on March 31 2024 As on 'March 31 2023

In line with the Capital Allocation Policy the Board at its meeting held on April 22 2023 approved the buyback of 12,60,610 equity shares amounting to ₹2206.07 Lakhs. The 
Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of ₹126.06 Lakhs equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from General Reserve. The Company’s 
objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value. In order 
to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure.
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Retained Earnings

Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year 23,067.92              19,520.41                 
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period 2,834.71                 3,762.05                   
Add: Profit/(Loss)arising from Business Combination (Note No. F) -                           -                             

25,902.63            23,282.46               
Less :
Actuarial Loss on defined benefits Obligations(Net of Tax) (33.12)                    7.75                            
Dividend Paid 189.09                    206.79                       
Balance Carried to Next Year (D) 25,746.66            23,067.92               

Other Comprehensive Income(OCI)
Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year 4,434.56                 4,217.46                   
Add: Movement in OCI(Net) during the year 102.42                    217.10                       

(E) 4,536.98               4,434.56                  

Total Other Equity (A+B+C+D+E) 32,292.95            32,019.72               

(A)

(B)

(C) This amount represents retained earnings of a company which are kept aside out of company’s profits to meet future (known or unknown) obligations.
(D) This amount represents the accumulated earnings of the Company.
(E)

15 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Term Loans (Secured)
- From Banks
Bank of Baroda 15.1 -                           2.31                              
ICICI Bank 15.2 1.05                          1.67                              
The Federal Bank 15.3 54.56                       77.74                           

- From Other Parties
Siemens Financial Services Private Limited 15.4 29.26                       51.21                           
Toyota Finance Services India Private Limited 15.5 37.83                       49.27                           
Tata Capital Limited 15.6 225.86                    

348.56                   182.20                     

15.1

15.2

15.3 The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 40 lakh  repayable in 56 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

15.3.1 The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 59 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

15.4 The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 87.79 lakh  repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Plant and Machinery.

15.5 The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 61.60 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle. 

15.6 The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 271.87 lakh  repayable in 49 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Plant and Machinery.
15.7
15.8

15.9

16 LEASE LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Non-Current Liabilities
Lease Liabilities 1.02                          94.00                           

Current Liabilities
Lease Liabilities 90.44                       98.91                           

91.46                      192.91                     

The amount equal to the nominal value of the shares purchased by the Company has been classified as Share Buy Back Reserve and shall be utilized in accordance with Section 69 of 
the Companies Act 2013.

This amount represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on revaluation of Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income net of
amounts reclassified if any to Retained  Earnings when those instruments are disposed of.

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 4.50 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to its lenders and has not declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks financial institution or any other lender.
Borrowings from financial institution have been used for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

The current maturities of the long term borrowings are disclosed under the head 'Short term borrowings'.

The loan is sanctioned for ₹ 3.00 lakh  repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments and is secured by way of Hypothecation of the respective Vehicle.

The amount received in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium and shall be utilized in accordance with Section 52 of Companies Act 2013.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Movement of Lease Liabilities during the year

Opening Lease Liabilities 192.91                    292.15                        
New Leases recognised -                           -                                
Interest expense on Lease Liabilities 3.11                          4.94                              
Exchange fluctuation on Lease Liabilities 4.49                          1.71                            
Payment of Lease Liabilities (109.05)                   (105.89)                     
Closing Lease Liabilities 91.46                      192.91                     

17 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Security Deposits 39.58                       38.39                          

39.58                      38.39                        

18 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Provision for Employee Benefits 40.4 154.17                    127.86                       
Provision for Warranty 24.1 214.96                    121.40                       

369.13                   249.26                     
19 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Sub Judicial Matter 40.5 662.08                    662.08                       
Advance against sale of Property Plant & Equipment 2,721.99                 2,796.24                   

3,384.07               3,458.32                  

20 CURRENT BORROWINGS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Secured Loans
Repayable on Demand
Cash Credit Facility from Banks 20.1 1,784.14                 1,415.08                   
Bill Discounting Facility from NBFC 20.2 2,082.21                 2,084.91                   
Loan against Securities from NBFC 20.3 3,510.99                 4,923.53                   

Unsecured Loans
Repayable on Demand
Loan From Related Parties 231.00                    556.00                       

Current Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings 65.57                       61.93                          

7,673.91               9,041.45                  

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

21 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Payables for goods and services 21.1 & 21.2 18,470.25              14,981.01                 

18,470.25            14,981.01               
Trade Payable ageing schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

years
Total

MSME 956.27                        -    -    -   956.27                     
Others 17,309.03                 97.66                      17.68                       89.62                       17,513.98               
Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Total 18,265.30              97.66                    17.68                      89.62                      18,470.25               

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

years
Total

MSME 93.75                         0.09                        93.84                        
Others 14,729.25                 104.58                    21.05                       32.28                       14,887.16               
Disputed dues - MSME -                             -                          -                           -                           -                              
Disputed dues - Others -                             -                          -                           -                           -                              
Total 14,823.00              104.68                  21.05                      32.28                      14,981.01               

21.1

21.2

22 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref.
As At

31st March 2024
As At

31st March 2023

Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 74.14                       161.45                       
Unpaid Dividend 9.47                          9.16                            
Unclaimed Preference shares 138.32                    138.32                       
Contractual Deductions by Customers & Price Variation 906.95                    177.79                       
Dues to Others 1,086.38                 918.91                       
Employee's Emoluments and Other Payables 333.86                    279.75                       

2,549.12               1,685.38                  

-  Land & Building of Sonipat unit admeasuring 16.86 acres.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
as on 31st March 2024

Vendor's balances are subject to confirmations and reconciliations.

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
as on 31st March 2023

The principal amount of  INR 956.27 lakh (Previous Year INR 93.84 lakh) remaining unpaid on 31.03.2024 to suppliers as defined in the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act 2006 to the extent such suppliers have been identified on the basis of information provided during the year to the Company. The Company generally makes 
payments to all its suppliers within the agreed credit period and thus the management is confident that the liability of interest under this Act if any would not be material.

-  Pari-Passu charge on other Fixed Assets of all units except Ghaziabad unit 

The Company has entered into Bill Discounting Arrangement  with Aditya Birla Finance Ltd.  amounting to ₹2100 lakh against lien on units of Investments. (refer Note No. 2.2 and 
2.4) 

360 One Prime Ltd. have sanctioned ₹8000 lakh Loan against securities & lien on units of various Investments. (refer Note No. 2.3)

Particulars

Particulars

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

As on Balance Sheet date the Borrowings have been used for the specific purpose taken for.

No charge or satisfaction of charge is pending for registration with Registrar of companies.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to its lenders and has not declared as wilful defaulter by any of banks financial institution or any other lender.

-  Plant & Machinery of all units except Ghaziabad unit.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

First Pari-Passu charge by way of hypothecation on all Current Assets of the company both present & future.  Second Pari-Passu charge on Fixed Assets of the company as under :-
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23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Statutory Dues 372.16                      174.23                        
Advance against sale of Fixed Assets -                             -                                
Advance from and Credit Balance of Customers & Others 4,125.63                  3,571.54                     
Unearned Revenue 566.08                      493.12                        
CSR Expense Payable 52.80                        24.00                           

5,116.67               4,262.89                  

24 CURRENT PROVISIONS

Particulars Ref. As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Provision for Employee Benefits 40.4 260.67                    250.64                        
Provision for Warrantees 24.1 350.98                    282.96                        
Provision for expenses 32.00                       

643.65                   533.60                     

24.1 Disclosures as per Ind AS-37

Particulars  Ref. No. 
 Balance as at 

31.03.2023 
 Additions 

during the year 
 Used & reversed 
during the year 

 Balance as at 
31.03.2024 

Provision for Warranty 24.1.1 404.36                  165.08                   3.51                        565.94                     
(351.49)                 (135.79)                   (82.93)                     (404.36)                    

Current Year 404.36                  165.08                   3.51                        565.94                       
Previous Year (351.49)                 (135.79)                   (82.93)                     (404.36)                     

Additional Notes :-

24.1.1 Warranty provision covers the estimated expenses to be incurred during warranty period of the products of the company determined on the basis of past experience. The company 
reviews the warranty provisions at periodical intervals and the same is adjusted to the estimated expenses to be incurred during the balance warranty period of the product.  
Expenses incurred during the year against warranty are being directly charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

104



25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Note Particulars Ref. 1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to

No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Sale of Product and Services

Sale of Finished Goods 52,484.22             43,684.89                      
Contract Jobs 16,091.77             12,221.12                      
Maintenance and Services Revenue 2,583.85                2,159.71                        

(A) 71,159.84            58,065.72                    
Other Operating Income
Sales of Production Scrap (B) 250.02                   178.78                            

Total Revenue     (A)+(B) 71,409.86            58,244.50                    

25.1 Disclosure on Revenue pursuant to Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers

A.  Disaggregation of Revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:
Revenue from contracts with customers

i) Revenue from Operations*

     a) Electrical Equipment for Power Transmission and Distribution 51,769.71            42,984.50                    
     b) Elevator 18,897.21            14,547.72                    
     c) Chemical 742.94                  712.29                          

Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 71,409.86            58,244.50                    

B. Contract Balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:

Contract Liabilities

Advance from Customers 4,125.63                3,571.54                        
Total (A) 4,125.63              3,571.54                       

Receivables

Trade Receivables 29,580.15             22,443.03                      
Total (B) 29,580.15            22,443.03                    

Net Receivables (B-A) 25,454.52            18,871.49                    

C. Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

Opening Balance 3,571.54                2,162.30                        
Addition during the year 4,125.63                3,571.54                        
Revenue recognized during the year 3,571.54                2,162.30                        

Closing Balance 4,125.63              3,571.54                       

ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Consolidated Notes forming part of the Statement of Profit & Loss

* The Company has disaggregated the revenue from contracts with customers on the basis of nature of products into Electrical Equipment for Power
Transmission and Distribution, Elevator and Chemical (refer note 39). The Company believes that the disaggregation of revenue on the basis of nature of
products has no impact on the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows.

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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26 OTHER INCOME

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest Income 799.21                   1,266.67                        
Rent & Licence Fees 195.98                   200.08                            
Dividend Income from Non-Current Investments (Other than Trade) 66.96                      57.45                              
Sundry Balances Written Back 92.73                      40.13                              
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 5.54                        -                                   
Reversal of Provisions -                          47.40                              
Net gain on Investments carried at fair value through Profit & Loss 1,690.51                -                                   
Modification Gain on Financial Asset 26.1 -                          164.34                            
Interest Income on Financial Assets carried at fair value through Amortised cost -                          100.81                            
Bad-debts Recovered 3.90                        384.60                            
Misc. Income 16.05                      6.86                                 

2,870.88              2,268.35                       
26.1 Modification gain on financial asset has been recognized on account of revision in contractual terms w.r.t. repayment of money to the Company.

27 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,  WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Closing Stock
Finished Goods 14.35                      5.67                                 
Work-in-Progress 9,734.92                8,716.88                        

9,749.27              8,722.55                       

Less:
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 5.67                        6.33                                 
Work-in-Progress 8,716.88                6,936.24                        

8,722.55             6,942.57                     

Decrease / (Increase) in Stock (1,026.72)           (1,779.97)                    

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Salaries and Wages 4,182.80                3,459.67                        
Contribution to Provident and Others Funds 301.56                   282.94                            
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 171.37                   143.23                            

4,655.73              3,885.85                       

29 FINANCE COSTS

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest Expense 891.77                   964.59                            
Interest on Lease Liabilities 3.11                        4.94                                 
Other Borrowing Cost 16.19                      1.31                                 

911.07                  970.83                           

Ref.

Ref.

Ref.

Ref.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Particulars

106



ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: U31500DL1945PLC008279

Consolidated Notes forming part of the Statement of Profit & Loss

30 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 469.52                   401.05                            

469.52                  401.04                           

31 OTHER EXPENSES

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Processing & Material Handling Expenses 2,969.80                2,311.02                        
Freight outwards, Transport and Octroi Expenses 644.25                   402.20                            
Power & Fuel Expenses 443.79                   423.56                            
Rent 179.35                   163.91                            
Rates and Taxes 142.90                  53.44                              

Auditor's Remuneration 31.1 12.54                      9.22                                 
Repair and Maintenance:

- Buildings 77.76                      81.05                              
- Plant and Machinery 146.01                   98.02                              
- Others  99.75                      105.24                            

Commission on Sales 760.28                   531.77                            
Net Loss on FVTPL -                          376.25                            
Insurance 117.02                   89.43                              
Legal & Professional Charges 703.75                   538.69                            

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 31.2 569.19                   469.83                            
Bank Charges 457.64                   534.76                            
After Sales Services 299.59                   164.65                            
Impulse & Short Circuit Charges 2.47                        33.32                              
Debt, Advance & other debit balance written off 66.39                      36.67                              
Provision For Doubtful Debts 153.57                   3.18                                 
Contractual Deductions / Recoveries by Customers 1,476.50                97.32                              
Directors Sitting Fees 0.99                        1.70                                 
CSR Expense 31.3 52.80                      27.99                              
Miscellaneous Expenses 844.87                   755.35                            

10,221.21            7,308.56                       

31.1 Payment to Statutory Auditors   :

  i) Audit Fee 4.75                        4.75                                 

  ii) Reimbursement of Expenses 0.45                        0.45                                 

  iii) Certification 0.95                        0.95                                 

  iv) Taxation and other matters 6.39                        3.07                                 

31.2 Includes Directors' Travelling ₹ 49.88 Lakh (Previous Year ₹  50.64 Lakh).

31.3

32.3 The Company has constituted a CSR Committee in pursuance to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has formulated CSR Policy. The Company is 
required to spend in every financial year at least 2% of the average net profits of the company during the immediately 3 preceding financial years.

Ref.

Provision for expenditure under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities is ₹ 52.80 Lakh (Previous year ₹ 

27.28 Lakh). The amount to be transferred to CSR unpent Account for utilisation as per the requirement under The Companies Act, 2013.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Ref.
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Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2023

                      24.00                                       -   
                      52.80                               27.28 
                             -                                    0.70 
                   (24.00)                               (3.98)
                      52.80                               24.00 
                             -                                         -   

Not applicable Not applicable

32 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

32.1 Reversal of Provision for Legal Liability 40.6 & 40.7 -                         (1,147.44)                     

32.2 Loss on account of cyber fraud 40.7 -                         199.00                            

-                        (948.44)                       

33 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

1st April, 2023 to 1st April, 2022 to
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

A. Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss

1. Actuarial gain/(loss) on Defined Benefit Obligations 33.12                    (7.75)                              
Income Tax Effect -                         -                                 

2. Net gain/(loss) on FVTOCI Equity securities 102.42                   217.09                          
Income Tax Effect -                          -                                 

B. Items that will  be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss -                          -                                 

135.55                209.34                         

 (f) Total of previous years shortfall/ Provision, 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)Details of CSR expenditure :-

For the year ended
31st March 2024

 (a) Unspent amount from previous years 
 (b) Amount required to be spent by the company during the financial year 

Ref.

Ref.

Amount has been deposited in separate CSR
bank account of the company and shall be
spent towards CSR activities/ projects in due
course of time within the statutory time
limit.

 (h) Nature of CSR activities, Promotion of education, health care,
Empowering women, setting up old age
homes, animal welfare etc.

(i) Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled
by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting
Standard, 

 (c) Short/(Excess) provision recognised in previous financial year 
(d) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year,

 (e) Shortfall/ Provision at the end of the year 

 (g) Reason for shortfall, 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Note No. 34 Category - Wise Classification of Financial Instruments

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Financial Assets

Measured at Amortised Cost
Investments 9.52                                    9.52                                    -                                      -                                      
Trade Receivables -                                      -                                      29,580.15                         22,443.03                         
Cash & cash equivalents -                                      -                                      1,537.92                           1,451.12                           
Other Bank balances -                                      -                                      469.20                               1,315.10                           
Loans -                                      -                                      43.64                                 40.16                                 
Other Financial Assets 439.29                               451.76                               541.31                               111.06                               

Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investments 15,368.54                         18,773.70                         144.82                               -                                      

Measured at Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income
Investments 2,877.55                           725.23                               -                                      -                                      
Total Financial Assets 18,694.90                       19,960.21                       32,317.04                       25,360.47                       

Financial Liabilities
Measured at Amortised Cost
Borrowings 348.56                               182.20                               7,673.91                           9,041.45                           
Lease Liabilities 1.02                                    94.00                                 90.44                                 98.91                                 
Trade Payables -                                      -                                      18,470.25                         14,981.01                         
Other Financial Liabilities 39.58                                 38.39                                 2,549.12                           1,685.38                           
Total Financial Liabilities 389.17                             314.60                             28,783.73                       25,806.75                       

PARTICULARS
NON- CURRENT CURRENT

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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Note No.  35 - Fair Value Measurements Of Financial Instruments

The following table provides Fair Value measurement hierarchy of company's financial asset and financial liabilities:

Particulars
 Fair Value 

Hierarchy (Level) 
31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023 

Financial Assets

Measured at Amortised Cost

Investments 3 9.52                            9.52                              

Loans 3 43.64                          40.16                            

Other Financial Assets 3 980.60                       562.82                         

Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Investments 2 15,513.36                 18,773.70                   

Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Investments 1 2,877.55                    725.23                         

Total Financial Assets 19,424.67                20,111.43                 

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended 31st March 2024.

Note No. 36 - Financial Risk Management - Objectives and Policies

(i) Market Risk

a. Foreign Currency Risk

The company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables, other financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s financial assets include investments, trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, other bank balances and loans. The Company is exposed to market risk and credit risk.
The Company has a Risk management policy and its management is supported by a Risk management committee that advises on risks and the appropriate
risk governance framework for the Company. The Risk management committee provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s risk
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises two types of risk: currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include FVTOCI
investments and FVTPL investments. 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a foreign currency exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities which is minimal. The
Company monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations on continuous basis and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company and
for taking risk mitigation measures. Since the Company's foreign currency risk exposure is limited, therefore, detailed disclosure of the same has not been
provided.

The financial instruments are categorised into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 3: Inputs are based on unobservable market data.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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b. Equity Price Risks

Equity Price Sensitivity
  

Particulars
Investment
Price Change +5% -5% +5% -5%
Effect on Profit before Tax 49.09                        (49.09)                        36.73                            (36.73)                       

(ii) Credit Risks

Trade Receivables

(iii) Liquidity Risk

Less than 1 Year Between 1 to 5 
Years

Total Carrying Value

As at 31st March, 2024
Borrowings (Refer Note No. 15, 20) 7,673.91                  348.56                       8,022.48                      8,022.48                   
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note No. 16) 90.44                        1.02                            91.46                            91.46                         
Trade Payables (Refer Note No. 21) 18,470.25                -                              18,470.25                   18,470.25                 
Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note No. 17, 22) 2,549.12                  39.58                          2,588.71                      2,588.71                   

As at 31st March, 2023
Borrowings (Refer Note No. 15, 20) 9,041.45                  182.20                       9,223.65                      9,223.65                   
Lease Liabilities (Refer Note No. 16) 98.91                        94.00                          192.91                         192.91                       
Trade Payables (Refer Note No. 21) 14,981.01                -                              14,981.01                   14,981.01                 
Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note No. 17, 22) 1,685.38                  38.39                          1,723.77                      1,723.77                   

The Company’s listed and non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment
securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments/mutual
funds. Reports on the investment portfolio are submitted to the Company’s management on a regular basis. 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). 

The following table shows the effect of price changes in quoted and unquoted equity shares , quoted and unquoted equity mutual funds/fixed maturity plan.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all the customers. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are

grouped into homogenous group and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on credit losses historical data. The maximum exposure

to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables disclosed as the Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company has

evaluated the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries.

Liquidity risk is the risk that Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. 

The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial asset and liabilities.
The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities
agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner. 

The table below analyse financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow. 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

981.89
31st March 2023

734.64
31st March 2024
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Note No. 37 -  Capital Management

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
                       6,558.70                      7,933.99 
                     32,671.30                   32,524.13 
                               0.20                              0.24 

Note No. 38 - Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates And Assumptions

(i) Judgements

a. Equity Investments measured at FVTOCI 

b. Business Model for Investment of Debt Instruments

(ii) Estimates and assumptions 

a. Defined benefit plans

Total equity

Particulars
Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Net Debts*

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

- Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,

and

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

The company has exercised the option to measure investment in equity instruments, not held for trading at FVTOCI in accordance with Ind AS 109. It has
exercised this irrevocable option for its class of quoted equity shares. The option renders the equity instruments elected to be measured at FVTOCI non-
recyclable to Statement of Profit & Loss. 

For the purpose of measuring investments in debt instruments in accordance with Ind AS 109, the company has evaluated and determined that the business
model for investments in quoted debentures and bonds is to collect the contractual cash flows and sell the financial asset. Such financial assets have been
accordingly classified and measured at FVTOCI. For the purpose of measuring investments in debt instruments in accordance with Ind AS 109, the company
has evaluated and determined that the business model for investments in unquoted debentures and bonds is only to collect the contractual cash flows. Such
financial assets have been accordingly classified and measured at amortised cost. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.  

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. Further details
about gratuity obligations are given in Note No. 40.4.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods .

* Net debt = non-current borrowings + current borrowings + current maturities of non-current borrowings + interest accrued – cash and cash equivalents.

Net debt to equity ratio
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b. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

c. Depreciation / amortization and useful lives of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets 

d. Impairment of non-financial asset

e. Taxes

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer Note
No 33.

Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortized over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual
value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation /
amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar
assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are significant changes
from previous estimates. 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.  

Determination of the recoverable amount involves management estimates on highly uncertain matters, such as commodity prices and their impact on
markets and prices for upgraded products, development in demand, inflation, operating expenses and tax and legal systems. The Company uses internal
business plans, quoted market prices and the Company’s best estimate of commodity prices, currency rates, discount rates and other relevant information. A
detailed forecast is developed for a period of three to five years with projections thereafter. The Company does not include a general growth factor to
volumes or cash flows for the purpose of impairment tests, however, cash flows are generally increased by expected inflation and market recovery towards
previously observed volumes is considered. 

The Company calculates income tax expense based on reported income. Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the
carrying value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax basis that are considered temporary in nature. Valuation of
deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of future recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from
expected taxable income in the future, planned transactions or planned tax optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different
conclusion regarding recoverability.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 

39 1. Basis of preparation of financial statements

a. Company overview

b. Basis of preparation of financial statements

c. Basis of consolidation

d. Statement of Compliance

e. Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (₹), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded off to the nearest two decimals of lakh, unless otherwise indicated. 

ECE Industires Ltd consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company, its controlled trusts and its subsidiaries. Control exists when the parent has power overthe entity, is
exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its
power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which
significantly affect the entity's returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases.

he financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group balances and transactions
including unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. These financialstatements are prepared by
applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group. Non-controlling interests which represent part of the net profit or loss and net
assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by theCompany, are excluded.

ECE Industries Limited ("the Company" or ECE) is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Transformer, Elevators’
Components, Switchgear and Chemicals , it's also engaged in the erection and installation of Elevator. The Company has manufacturing
facilities at Hyderabad (Andhra Pradesh), Sonepat (Haryana), and Ghaziabad (Uttar Pradesh).

ECE together with its subsidiaries and controlled trusts is hereinafter referred to as 'the Group'.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India, and has its registered office at  ECE House, 28 Kasturba 
Gandhi Marg, New Delhi 110001, India. The Group's Consolidated financial statements are approved on 05th September 2024.

These Consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under the historical
cost convention on accrual basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read withRule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015
and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except where a newly-issued
accounting standard is initially adopted ora revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hither to in use.

As the year-end figures are taken from the source and roundedto the nearest digits, the figures reported for the previous quarters might
not always add up to the year-end figures reported in this statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and other
relevant provision of the Act. The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company adopted IND AS from 01st April, 2017. 

With effect from 1st April, 2019, Ind AS 116 – “Leases” (IndAS 116) supersedes Ind AS 17 – “Leases”. The Company has adopted Ind AS
116 using the prospective approach. The application of Ind AS 116 has resulted into recognition of ‘Right-of-Use’ asset with a
corresponding Lease Liability in the Balance Sheet.
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f. Historical Cost Convention

(i)
(ii)
(ii) Property, Plant & Equipment

g. Fair Value Measurement

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

h. Current Versus Non-Current Classification

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement, at the end of each reporting period.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.  

the asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled in normal operating cycle;
the asset is intended for sale or consumption;
the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

At each reporting date, the Management analyse the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-
measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied
in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset or liability is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following condition: 

the asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after the reporting period;
the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period;

in the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

The financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting on a historical cost basis, except for the following
which are measured at fair value:

Certain financial assets and liabilities

A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require fair value measurement for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. 

Defined benefit plans

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement, as under: 

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level II - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level III -  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

115



i. Use of Estimates and Judgements

j. Foreign Currency Transactions

k. Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Recognition & Measurement

(ii)

(iii)

An item of PPE or any significant part thereof is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of PPE is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates on the date the transaction first qualifies
for recognition. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date. Exchange difference arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on net basis. 

All items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost of an
item of PPE includes its purchase cost, non-refundable taxes and duties, directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use and borrowing cost if the recognition criteria is met. 

Subsequent costs are included in an item of PPE‘s carrying value or recognised as a separate item, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred. 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. 

Depreciation methods, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Value

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of PPE at fair value and use that as the deemed cost of such PPE.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures and
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The revisions in accounting estimates
and assumptions are recognised prospectively.  Detailed information about estimates and judgements is included in Note No. 38.

Depreciation on all items of PPE is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual value, over their
estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act except for certain items where the management estimates the life
indifferently basis the usage of such items. 

Depreciation on an item of PPE purchased/sold during the year is provided on pro-rata basis. Freehold land is not depreciated. The
residual values are not more than 5% of the cost of an item of PPE. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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l. Intangible Assets

m. Lease Accounting

n. Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:-

Provision for obsolete/old inventories is made, wherever required, as per the consistently followed system.

Leasehold land with perpetual right has been included in property plant & equipment. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Raw materials, stores, 
spares, other 
materials and traded 
goods

Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the 
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which 
they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on first 
in first out basis. 

Finished goods and 
Work-in- progress 
(own manufactured)

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a 
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

Work in Progress 
(Long Term 
Contracts)

Work in Progress i.e. jobs under execution (including materials supplied to clients under the 
contract) to the extent of work done but not billed is valued at the lower of actual cost 
incurred upto the completion on reporting date and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
materials, labour and proportionate overheads. 

Scrap Net Realizable Value

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses, if any.
On transition to Ind As, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised as at April 01,
2016, measured as per previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

Intangible assets such as Software, Design & Development, Patents etc. are amortized based upon their estimated useful lives of 5-6
years.

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset.

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.
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o. Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

Subsequent measurement:

a.
b.

a.
b.
c.

A. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(i)

(ii)

B.  Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:

(i)

(ii)

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments (Refer Note 33 for further details). Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. 

Under the effective interest method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the effective
interest rate. The cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount
and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial asset over the
relevant period of the financial asset to arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the amortization
under effective interest method is recognized as interest income over the relevant period of the financial asset. The same is included
under other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and 

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category applies to certain investments in equity instruments (Refer Note 33 for further details). Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income and impairment losses and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:

 The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
Financial Assets, which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.
Purchase and sale of Financial Assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

The Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows, and
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C. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of Financial Assets:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is not reclassified from the equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity.

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained above. This is a residual
category applied to all other investments of the Company (Refer Note 33 for further details). Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized (i.e.
removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs: 

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI), the difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Trade receivables

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognized as loss allowance. 

In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL
is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized as loss allowance. 

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI (Refer Note 32 for further details). The Company has made such election on an instrument by instrument basis. These equity
instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration recognized under a business combination. Pursuant to such
irrevocable election, subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments are recognized in OCI. However, the Company
recognizes dividend income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires; 
The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 

The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows without
material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset); 

The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the financial
asset.

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but retains
control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognize such financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following: 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables) 
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(ii)

m

n

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained
decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment. 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. To calculate value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the
risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in
an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal. 

Impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in depreciation and amortisation expense.
Impairment losses are reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised. 

Income Tax

Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to
an item recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity as the case may be. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial asset. 12-month
ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from the reporting date. 

Financial Liabilities

The Company recognizes a financial liabilities in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All Financial Liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. 

Derecognition:

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of outcomes, taking
into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. The 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss under the head ‘Other expenses’.

Initial recognition and measurement: 

Subsequent measurement: 
All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to
the short maturity of these instruments.
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(i)

(ii)

o

(i)

(ii)

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustments to the tax payable in respect of
previous years. It is measured using tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax asset is also recognised in respect of
carried forward tax losses and unused tax credits.  

Deferred Tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences, carried forward tax losses and unused tax credits.  

Deferred Tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.  

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying
amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.  

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the Company. 

The Company recognises revenue when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met for main revenue streams of the company for its recognition :

Sale of Goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer
and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue on long term contracts is recognized on the basis of percentage of completion method which is based on specified milestone or
in proportionate to the work completed against each contract which are fixed price contract. Provisions are made for the entire loss on a
contract irrespective of the amount of work done. Claims on account of price variation receivable / payable from / to the customers are
accounted for on the basis of contractual terms. Final adjustments towards estimated claims for extra work are made in the year of
settlement.

Current Tax

Revenue Recognition 

Sale of Contract Jobs
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

p

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

q Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs attributable to
the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowings costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Transaction costs in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over the tenor of
respective loans using effective interest method. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Revenue is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the balance sheet date.

Royalties
Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed as the relative service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g. towards bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably.  

Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is a post employment benefit plan under which the Company pays contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company recognises the contributions payable
towards the provident fund as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Revenue received from Investments made in Venture Capital Funds is recognized on actual receipt basis and are shown in respective
heads of Income in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits 

Defined contribution plan

Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company has funded Gratuity
liability towards this which is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation made by an external valuer at the end of each financial year
using the projected unit credit method and is contributed to the Gratuity Fund formed by the company. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are immediately
recognised in the balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to Other Equity through OCI. Remeasurements are not classified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.   

Net interest and changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. 

Other long term employee benefits
The liabilities for earned leave are measured and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation made by an external valuer at the end of
each financial year using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss  in the period in which they arise. 

Income Distributed by Venture Capital Fund

Revenue is recognized using effective interest method.

Dividend

Income from Services
Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.

Interest
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r Earnings per Share

s

t

u

v.

w

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(CODM). 

Identification of segments: 
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services provided,
with each segment representing strategic business unit/units that/those offer/offers different products and serve/serves different
markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

Inter Segment Transfer:
The Company generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties at current market
prices.

Allocation of common costs: 
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to the total common costs.

Unallocated items: 
Unallocated items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment.

Events after Reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the
impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or
nature are only disclosed. 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss before OCI for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.  

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the post tax effect
of finance costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the issue of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with remaining maturity of
12 months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash Dividend to Equity Shareholders

The Company recognises a liability to make distribution of cash dividend to equity shareholders of the Company when the distribution
is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. 

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.  

Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are measured at present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to liability. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense. 

Segment
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ECE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

40 Other Notes on Accounts

40.1 Commitments & Contingent Liabilities : 2023-24 2022-23

(a) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of :

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, are as given below :
(i) -                                       -                                
(i) 43.40                                  43.40                           
(ii) 0.60                                     0.60                              

(b) Other Claims :
Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, are as given below** :
Labour Cases 2.00*** 2.00***
Demands raised by Provident Fund / Employee State Insurance department 1.55*** 1.55***
Other Claims 26.40*** 26.40***

**

***

40.2 Segment Information

(a) Business Segments:

(b) Geographical Segments:

(c) Primary segment information (by Business segments)

(d) Significant Segment Information Disclosure:                

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue
Revenue from operation 51,769.71              42,984.50          18,897.21        14,547.72         70,666.92               57,532.21                         
Other Income 26.28                       446.68                 123.28              36.62                  149.56                     483.30                               
Total income 51,795.99            43,431.18         19,020.48      14,584.33        70,816.47             58,015.51                       
Results
Segment results Profit/(Loss) 3,878.31                 4,170.74             777.34              341.74                4,655.64                 4,512.48                            

Finance Cost (911.07)                   (970.83)                             
Unallocated Corporate Income (Net) 1,075.07                 904.88                               
Exceptional Income/(Expense) -                                       
Profit before Tax 4,819.64                4,446.53                          
Tax Expense 1,984.93                 684.45                               
Net Profit 2,834.71                3,762.07                          

Other Information
Segment Assets 39,778.54              33,109.68          10,510.45        8,351.11            50,288.99               41,460.79                         
Unallocated Corporate Assets 21,625.48               25,688.75                         
Total Assets 71,914.47             67,149.54                       

Segment Liabilities 20,954.68              16,754.94          8,840.92          7,133.61            29,795.60               23,888.55                         
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 9,447.58                 10,736.86                         
Total Liabilities 39,243.18             34,625.41                       

Capital Expenditure 795.53                    267.94                 277.72              277.72                1,073.25                 545.66                               
Corporate Office Capital Expenditure 71.53                        145.67                               
Total Capital Expenditure 1,144.78                691.33                              

Depreciation & Amortisation 248.40                    223.52                 83.91                 54.59                  332.31                     278.11                               
Unallocated Depreciation 137.20                     122.93                               
Total Depreciation 469.52                    401.04                              

Other Non Cash Expenses
Provision for Doubtful Debts -                            -                        439.84              286.27                439.84                     286.27                               
Provision for Impairment of  Assets -                        -                       -                                       

40.3 Basic and diluted Earning per share
2023-24 2022-23

Profit/(Loss) for the year ₹ in lakh 2,834.71                          3,762.07                           
Equity Shares Outstanding at the beginning of the year Numbers 50,42,449                         67,22,596                        
Equity Shares Outstanding at the year end Numbers 37,81,845                         50,42,449                        
Weighted Average Number of equity shares Numbers 41,85,929                         53,73,881                          
Earnings Per Share (₹) 67.72 70.01

40.4 Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard- 19 (Employees' Benefit)

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

As of 31st March, 2024, there are three business segments i.e. Electrical Equipments for Power Transmission and Distribution (comprising of Transformer and Switchgear), Elevator and  Chemical. A description of the types of products 
and services provided by each reportable segment is as follows:

i)  Electrical Equipments for Power Transmission and Distribution – the Company deals in manufactures and supplies power and distributes transformers and switchgear.
ii) Elevator Division manufactures equipments/ components of elevators for execution of jobs for erection and installation and also for supplies to other parties in the market.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan and leave encashment plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year 
of service and every employee who discontinues his services to the company  gets leave encashment (last drawn salary). 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plan (based on Actuarial Valuation)

The following table presents revenue and profit information regarding business segments for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and certain assets and liability information regarding business segments at March 31, 
2024 and March 31, 2023.

 Excise Duty & Service Tax 
 Sales Tax / VAT / Work Contract Tax etc. 

Particulars

 Cess & Others  

The Management feels that the Company has a good chance of success in above mentioned cases hence no provision there against is considered necessary.

In view of large number of cases pending at various Forums / Courts, it is not practicable to give the details of each case. List also includes certain labour matters for which amount of
liability is not ascertainable at this stage.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Total

Since the Company does not exports and operates in the domestic market which is governed by the same risks and returns, no geographical information is provided.

Electrical Equipment for Power 
Transmission and Distribution

Elevator 
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Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

(a) Statement of Profit and Loss:
Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee Cost)
Current service cost 76.96                  71.62                        38.75                                  49.78                                   
Interest cost on benefit obligation 57.40                  50.29                        24.37                                  20.96                                   
Expected return on Plan Assets (56.65)                 (50.06)                      -                                       -                                        
Net actuarial( gain) / loss recognised in the year                             -                                    -   (22.76)                                (15.55)                                 
Net benefit expense                    77.70                         71.85 40.36                                                                     55.19 

(b) Balance Sheet:
Defined benefit obligation 857.03                804.02                     363.45                               338.34                                
Fair value of plan assets (832.43)              (763.64)                   -                                                                                    -   

Net Liability arising from defined benefit obligation 24.60                                         40.39 363.45                                                               338.34 

(c) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 804.02                714.28                     338.34                               295.86                                
Interest cost                     57.40                          50.29                                    24.37                                      20.96 
Current service cost 76.96                  71.62                                                           38.75                                      49.78 
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience variance                  (33.86)                          22.18 -                                       -                                        
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from change in financial assumption                        2.88                        (15.14) -                                       -                                        
Benefits paid                  (50.37)                        (39.22) (15.24)                                (12.71)                                 
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation                             -                                    -   (22.76)                                (15.55)                                 
Closing defined benefit obligation 857.03                                    804.02                                 363.45                                  338.34 

(d) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
 Opening fair value of plan assets 763.64                668.46                                                                 -                                                -   
 Expected return on plan assets                     56.65                          50.06                                             -                                                -   
 Contributions by employer                     10.00                          45.82                                             -                                                -   
 Withdraw                             -                                    -                                               -                                                -   
Remeasurement Gain/(Loss) on return plan assets                        2.14                          (0.70)                                             -                                                -   

 Closing fair value of plan assets 832.43                                    763.64                                            -                                                -   

(e) Other Comprehensive Income are as follows:
Return on plan assets(excluding amounts included in net interest Expense                        2.14                          (0.70)                                             -                                                -   
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustment                  (33.86) 22.18                                                                    -                                                -   
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from change in financial assumption                        2.88 (15.14)                                                                  -                                                -   

(33.12)               7.75                                                                    -                                                -   

(f) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
2023-24 2022-23

% %
 Investments with insurer 100 100

(g)

Attrition Rate 10%/30%/20%' * 10%/30%/20%' *
 Imputed Rate of Interest(D) 7.24% 7.37%
 Imputed Rate of Interest(IC) 7.37% 7.24%
 Salary Rise 8.00% 8.00%
 Return on Plan Assets 7.37% 7.24%
 Remaining Working Life 21.84 21.24
 Mortality Rate(Table) 

IAL 2012-14 Ultimate IAL 2012-14 Ultimate

* 30.00% for Sales personnels, 20.00% for Technical staff and 10.00% for rest of the employees in Elevators Division.

 Attrition Rate 10%/30%/20%' * 10%/30%/20%' *
 Imputed Rate of Interest(D) 7.24% 7.37%
 Imputed Rate of Interest(IC) 7.37% 7.24%
 Salary Rise 8.00% 8.00%
 Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.
 Remaining Working Life 21.84 21.24
 Mortality Rate(Table) 

IAL 2012-14 Ultimate IAL 2012-14 Ultimate

* 30.00% for Sales personnels, 20.00% for Technical staff and 10.00% for rest of the employees in Elevators Division.

(h) Disclosure 
The amounts for the Non-Current and Current in respect of gratuity and Leave are as follows

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Current Portion of defined benefit obligation 374.00                346.87                                                      205.68                                   208.21 
Non-Current Portion of defined benefit obligation 483.03                457.16                                                      157.77                                   130.13 

(i) The Impact of sensitivity analysis on defined benefit plan is given below:-

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Attrition rate increase by 1% (1.46)                   (1.12)                         (0.17)                                   (0.12)                                    
Attrition rate decrease by 1% 1.54                     1.18                          0.19 0.13
Salary growth rate increase by 1% 22.78                  22.04                        6.02 5.30
Salary growth rate decrease by 1% (21.44)                 (20.76)                      (5.66)                                   (4.99)                                    
Imputed  rate of return rate increase by 1% (21.39)                 (20.69)                      (5.65)                                   (4.97)                                    
Imputed  rate of return rate decrease by 1% 23.17                  22.39                        6.12                                     5.38                                      

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Gratuity Leave 

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

The Principal assumptions used in determining leave obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

LeaveGratuity

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.
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40.5

40.6

40.6

40.7

40.8

41

I. Names of Related Parties

A Key Management Personnel
Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta Chairman &  Managing Director
Mr. Rajat Sharma Chief Financial Officer

B Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Sakate Khaitan Director

C Persons having singnificant influence

Mr. Prakash Kumar Mohta has significant influence in the following Companies:
(i) Bhiragacha Finance Company Pvt. Ltd.
(ii) Diplomat Ltd
(iii) Ircon Trading & Mfg. Pvt. Ltd.*

 (iv) P P Packagings Pvt Ltd (a 100% subsidiary of Universal Autocraft Pvt. Ltd.)*
(v) Nikita PackagingPvt. Ltd.*
(vi) Universal Prime Aluminium Limited*
(vii) Universal Enterprises Ltd*
* Enterprises ceases to be related party from 12.01.2022.

D Wholly owned Subsidiaries
(i) ECE Transformers Limited
(ii) ECE Elevators Limited

II. Transactions with Key Management Personnel are as under:

Nature of Transactions 2023-24 2022-23
Salary/Perquisites 510.21                 481.82              
Provident/Superannuation Fund 84.79                   80.33                 
Dividend Paid during the year 85.28                   68.02                 
Sitting Fees 0.20                      0.18                   

*   Excluding Gratuity and Leave Encashment provision on actuarial basis.

III. Transactions with enterprises over which Key Management Personnel exercise significant influence are as under:

Particulars Loan Received
Loan 

Paid/Refund

Sales of 
Goods/Assets

/Other 
Services

Purchase of 
Goods/Assets/
Other Services

Interest Paid Interest Received Invetsment 

Payment of 
services & 

Reimbursement of 
expenses 

Receipt of 
Services 

Rendered

(i) Bhiragacha Finance Company Pvt. Ltd. -                            -                        -                      -                         -                              -                                       -                                        -                                 -                         
(356.39)                  (350.00)               -                      -                       -                            (6.39)                                   -                                        -                                 -                         

(ii) Diplomat Ltd -                            -                        -                      -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 -                         
(41.94)                     (41.94)                  -                      -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 -                         

(iii) P P Packagings Pvt Ltd -                            -                        0.36                   -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 0.36                       
-                            -                        (1.02)                  -                       -                            -                                        -                                        -                                 (1.02)                      

(v) Universal Enterprises Ltd -                            -                        1.10                   -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 1.10                       
-                            -                        (1.37)                  (0.08)                   -                            -                                       -                                        (0.08)                             (1.37)                      

(vi) Universal Prime Aluminium Limited -                            325.00                 1.23                   2.15                     42.94                        -                                       -                                        2.15                               1.23                       
-                            -                        (1.25)                  (3.07)                   -                            -                                       -                                        (3.07)                             (1.25)                      

(vi) Ircon Trading & Mfg. Pvt. Ltd. -                            -                        0.84                   -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 0.84                       
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 -                         

(vii) Nikita PackagingPvt. Ltd. -                            -                        2.47                   -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 2.06                       
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 -                         

(viii) ECE Transformers Limited -                            -                        -                      -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 -                         
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                            -                                       (1.00)                                    -                                 -                         

(ix) ECE Elevators Limited -                            -                        -                      -                       -                            -                                       -                                        -                                 -                         
-                            -                        -                      -                       -                            -                                       (1.00)                                    -                                 -                         

* Figures in Brackets represents previous year figure.

Related party Disclosure as identified by the management in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard -24 issued under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Related Party Disclosure :

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company bought back 12,60,610 fully paid equity shares of ₹ 10/- each at a price of ₹ 175/- per share aggregating to ₹22,06,06,750/- from the existing equity shareholders of the Company in 
accordance with section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company had made claims against Uttar Haryana Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (UHBVN) for refund of liquidated damages deducted by the Electricity Board as well as interest on delayed payment of bills/due instalments by the 
Electricity Board. The arbitrator, appointed by the chairman, UHBVN, had given award in favour of the Company which was subsequently confirmed by the Additional Distt. Judge, Panchkula (Haryana). The Electricity Board has, 
however, filed an appeal with the Hon’ble High Court, Punjab & Haryana. While admitting the appeal, the Hon’ble High Court passed an interim order dated 25.08.2009, directing the Electricity Board to pay to the company a sum of 
INR 608.08 lakh against bank guarantee of the same amount as security to the Electricity Board. The Electricity Board has made payment against bank guarantee given to them as security. As the matter is still sub-judice, the amount is 
lying in Other Non Current Liabilities.

During the F.Y 2016-17, a suit in the court of Civil Judge (Sr. Div.) Sealdah, West Bengal for recovery of possession of land and structure thereon which was taken on rent by the company was filed by the Lessor on expiration of lease by
efflux of time. The court order was passed to hand over the possession of the suit property and the company to pay mesne profit and occupational charges till hand over of the possession to the lessor. In the year 2014, the property
was handed over to the lessor by the company.  The matter went upto High Court at Calcutta and is still pending in the Civil court. A sum of INR 881.33 lakh has been provided in books of account towards such charges.
 
During the Previous FY 2022-23, the management of the company come to know that Govt. of West Bengal had already filed a suit in the court of Ld. Civil Judge (Sr. Division) at Sealdah, vide Misc. case No. 11 of 2019, Title Execution
case No. 01/2011 (arising T.S. No. 12/97 & decreed on 18.12.2010) against Raj Luxmi Investment and Trading Co Ltd. and ECE Industries Limited pleading that Raj Luxmi Investment and Trading Co Ltd mislead the Govt. and played
fraud on Govt. by producing a sale deed which is void one as neither earliest lessee nor anybody else has any right to sell Khas Mahal land to any person except Govt. Dept. interse. 
Further, On July 10, 2023, Land and Land Reforms and R.R. & R Department, Land Policy Branch, Govt. of West Bengal has issued a notification vide notification no. 2701-LP/1A-03/23, and claimed that the property being holding No. 1-
5-186A, Premises No. 9, K. P. Singhi Road, Kolkata – 700002 is the Khas Mahal Land and under the direct control and Supervision of the petitioner i.e. ADM & DL & LRO, South 24, Parganas, Govt. of W.B.. 
In view of the above, the management has decided to write back the provision of Rs. 881.33 Lakh provided in the year 2016-17.  

During the F.Y 2016-17, the company on the order passed by Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad has provided INR 266.11 lakh.  The amount was charged towards any unexpected outcome of the challenge testing ordered 
by the Court to be conducted at Central Power Research Institute to establish that the transformers which were supplied to The Southern Power Distribution Company of Telangana Limited were within technical parameters as 
mentioned in the purchase order. 

During the Previous FY 2022-23, the management has written back the provision created for Rs. 266.11 Lakh after the settlement with Southern Power transmission limited.

During the FY 2022-23, a cyber fraud happened at the transformer division of the company at Sonipat and Rs. 199 lakh was frauduently transferred from company's bank accounts to some unknown accounts. Management had filed 
FIR with Police station - cyber, Sonipat Haryana.  The complaints with Reserve bank of India Banking ombudsman and Bank of Baroda were also filed. The amount was written off as loss on account of Cyber fraud, under exceptional 
items.

Amount (₹ in Lakh)
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IV. Amount of outstanding balances are as under:

Nature of Transactions 2023-24 2022-23

Salary/Perquisites 17.17                    37.53                  
Provident/Superannuation Fund 84.79                    3.22                    
Borrowings 231.00               556.00             
Trade receivable (net) 0.42                     -                     
Net off Reiumbersment (received)
- ECE Transformers Limited 0.43                     -                     
- ECE Elevators Limited 0.33                     -                     

41.1 Additional information pursuant to para 2 of general instructions for the preparation of Consolidated financial statements

as % age of Amount as % age of Amount as % age of Amount as % age of Amount
consolidated (In ₹ Lakhs) consolidated (In ₹ Lakhs) consolidated (In ₹ Lakhs) consolidated (In ₹ Lakhs)
net assets net assets net assets net assets

ECE Industries Ltd 101.218% 33,069                 100.017% 4820.46 101.242% 32693.9 100.000% 34990.0
ECE Elevators Ltd 0.003% 1.10                      -0.008% -0.41 -0.002% (0.51)                                   0.000% 0.00
ECE Transformer Ltd 0.004% 1.20                      -0.008% -0.41 -0.002% (0.51)                                   0.000% 0.00

42 Financial Ratios

31st March 2024 31st March 2023 Variance %

1.4 1.4 0.00%
0.09 0.11 -18.18%

5.14 4.89 5.11

2.75 2.85 -3.51

3.28 3.76 -12.77

5.11 4.77 7.13

0.04 0.06
-33.33%

0.15 0.12 24.99%

0.13 0.06 116.67%
0.25 0.29 -14.48%
0.52 0.55 -5.45%

43 Other statutory information

a)

b)

c)
d)

e)

f)

44 Events after the Reporting Period

45

As per our report of even date attached.

For VSD & Associates                   For and on behalf of Boards of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.  008726N

(Vinod Sahni)
   Partner
M.No.  086666

Date : 05.09.2024
Place : New Delhi

Previous year figures has been reclassified/regrouped to confirm current year figures.

Working Capital

Note -ii - The ratio has improved due to increase in Returns on Investments and average investment decreased due to sales proceeds from Investments.

Average Investments

Net Profit ratio (in %)  (Note -i)

Return on Capital employed (in %)

Income from Investments

Net operating income
Total debt Debt Equity ratio Equity shareholder's fund

The Company has not made any further investments in any company, hence, clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable on the Company.

During the current financial year, the Company has not undertaken any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

During the current financial year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium) to any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (intermediaries).

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
 i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identiϐied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneϐiciaries) or
 ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneϐiciaries.

Return on investment (in %) (Note -ii)

Total debt service

Gross Revenue from sale
of products and services

Gross Revenue from sale of 
products and services

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

 i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identiϐied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneϐiciaries) or
 ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneϐiciaries.

Current assets
Profit for the year

Current Ratio (in times)

Share in other
comprehensive income

 Share in total comprehensive income 

Average Shareholder’s Equity
Current liabilities

Ratios

 Name of the Entity Net assets Share in profit or loss

Average InventoriesInventory turnover Ratio (in times)

Net Capital turnover ratio (in times)
Average Trade payablesNet purchasesTrade Payables turnover ratio (in times)

Gross Revenue from sale
of products and services

Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times)

Sd/-

Denominator

Amount (₹ in Lakh)

Numerator

Debt service coverage ratio

Note -i - The ratio has decreased due to decrease in profit after tax and increase in revenue from operations.

Profit for the year

Profit before interest and
taxes

Average Trade receivablesGross Revenue from sale
of products and services

Return on Equity Ratio (in %)

Average Capital employed

The Board of Directors have recommended dividend of Rs.15/- per fully paid up equity share of Rs.10/- each for the financial year 2023-24

Sd/-
(Prakash Kumar Mohta)

Managing Director 
DIN: 00191299 

Sd/-
(Sakate Khaitan) 

Director 
DIN: 01248200 

Sd/-
(Yogesh Dahayalal Korani)

Director 
DIN: 00041923 

Sd/-
(Rajat Sharma)

President & CFO
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Registered Office : 
“ECE House”, 28-A, Kasturba Gandhi Marg 

New Delhi – 110001 
CIN : U31500DL1945PLC008279 
Email : ecehodelhi1@gmail.com 

Website : www.eceindustries.com 
Tel No.: (+91-11) 23314237-39 
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